
Page 1 of 4 
 

A G E N D A 
REGULAR JOINT MEETING 

OF THE EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE 
AND THE USER COMMITTEE 

TUESDAY, NOVEMBER 20, 2018, 2:00 PM 
SOUTH BAY REGIONAL PUBLIC COMMUNICATIONS AUTHORITY 

4440  W. BROADWAY, HAWTHORNE, CA  
 
 

A. CALL TO ORDER 
 

 
B. PUBLIC DISCUSSION 

Members of the public will be given the opportunity to directly address the 
Executive Committee and the User Committee on any item listed on the 
agenda. 

 
 
C. CONSENT CALENDAR 
 

1. Minutes of Regular Meeting – October 16, 2018 
 

 2. Check Register for October 2018 
 

 3. Cash & Investments Report – September 30, 2018 
 

 4. Budget Performance Report – through October 31, 2018 
 

 5. Approve a Fiscal Year 2018/19 Blanket Purchase Order to the City 
of Hawthorne IT Services (ITS) Department for Information 
Technology Support Services in a Total Amount Not to Exceed 
$200,000 

 
 6. Approve a Change Purchase Order in the Amount of $85,000 to Lehr 

Auto Corporation for Supplies and Equipment 
 

 7. Approve a Fiscal Year 2018/19 Blanket Purchase Order to CDW 
Corporation for Supplies and Equipment in a Total Amount Not to 
Exceed $100,000 

 
 8. Update on FirstNet in Los Angeles County 
 
  
D. ITEMS REMOVED FROM THE CONSENT CALENDAR 
 

Agenda Packet  Page 1 of 171



Page 2 of 4 
 

 
E. GENERAL BUSINESS 

 
1. Election of User Committee Chair for the Remainder of Fiscal Year 

2018/19 
 
2. Carry Over of the Remaining Balance of a Purchase Order Issued to 

Motorola Solutions, Inc. In the Amount of $1,602,068.60 Related to 
the UASI 2016 Grant and Interoperability Network of the South Bay 
Project from Fiscal Year 2017/2018 to 2018/2019 

 
3. Appropriation of $4,773,979.70 in Reimbursements Related to the 

Communication Equipment Purchase and Reimbursement 
Agreements with Member and Contract Cities and Authorization of 
These Funds to be Used to Exercise the Purchase Option under the 
Equipment Lease-Purchase Agreement with Motorola Solutions, 
Inc.; and 

 
Appropriation of $37,059.88 from the Enterprise Fund Unreserved 
Balance and Authorization of These Funds to be Used to Exercise 
the Purchase Option under the Equipment Lease-Purchase 
Agreement with Motorola Solutions, Inc.; and 
 
Approval to Exercise the Purchase Option under the Equipment 
Lease-Purchase Agreement with Motorola Solutions, Inc. And 
Authorize the Executive Director to Provide the 30 Day Notice 
Required to Purchase All of the Equipment Associated with the 
Agreement; and 
  
Authorization for the Executive Director to Issue Payment to 
Motorola Solutions, Inc. in the Amount of $6,544,686.58; and 
 
Authorization for the Executive Director to Negotiate and Execute 
Amendments to the Communication Equipment Purchase and 
Reimbursement Agreements with Member and Contract Cities to 
Reconcile the Consideration Amounts with the Actual Orders Placed 
and Costs Incurred for This Project 

 
 

4. Amendment to the Communication Equipment Purchase and 
Reimbursement Agreement with the City of Hawthorne; and 
 
Appropriation of $79,588.37 from the Enterprise Fund Unreserved 
Balance to the Technical Services Parts-Billing Account; and 
 

Agenda Packet  Page 2 of 171



Page 3 of 4 
 

Approve a Purchase Order to Commline Incorporated for Radio 
Equipment Related to the Hawthorne Police Department’s Operation 
of Its Airship Unit on the INSB Radio Network in the Not to Exceed 
Amount of $79,588.37 

 
5. Amendment to Salary Range for Accountant Position; and 

 
Authorization for the Executive Director to Execute a Side Letter of 
Agreement between the Management and Confidential Bargaining 
Group and the South Bay Regional Public Communications Authority 

 
6. Request from Executive Director to Attend Liebert Cassidy 

Whitmore’s 2019 Annual Public Sector Employment Law Conference 
 
7. Authorize the Executive Director to Execute an Agreement with 

Commline Incorporated for Avtec & Stancil License Purchase, 
Integration and Programming Services; and 

 
Approve a Corresponding Purchase Order in the Total Amount of 
$139,153.31 for this Purchase; and 
 
Approve an Operating Budget Transfer from Technical Services 
Salaries to Outside Technical Services-Towers & Equipment in the 
Amount of $139,153.31 

 
 
F. EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR’S REPORT 

 
 
G. EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE AND USER COMMITTEE COMMENTS 
 
 
H. GRIEVANCE HEARING 
 

1. Grievance Filed by Sirena Boskovich – Step 4 
 

I.   CLOSED SESSION AGENDA 
 
Conference with Labor Negotiator 
Pursuant to Government Code Section 54957.6 
Discussion with Liebert Cassidy Whitmore Re:  Teamsters Local 911 
 
Conference with Labor Negotiator 
Pursuant to Government Code Section 54957.6  
Discussion with Liebert Cassidy Whitmore Re: Communications Workers of 
America 

Agenda Packet  Page 3 of 171



Page 4 of 4 

Conference with Labor Negotiator 
Pursuant to Government Code Section 54957.6  
Discussion with Liebert Cassidy Whitmore Re: Management & Confidential 
Employees 

Conference with Legal Counsel – Existing Litigation 
Pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.9 
Name of Case:  Grier v. City of Gardena, et. al., Los Angeles Superior Court 
Case No. YC071434 

Public Employee Performance Evaluation 
Pursuant to Government Code Section 54957 
Title:  Executive Director 

Conference with Labor Negotiator 
Pursuant to Government Code Section 54957.6 
Discussion with Negotiator Edward Medrano 
Unrepresented Employee:  Executive Director 

J. ADJOURNMENT 

Posting Place: 

Posting Date/Time: 

4440 W. Broadway, Hawthorne, CA 90250 and 
www.rcc911.org 
November 15, 2018/3:00 PM 

Signature: 

_________________________ 
Erick B. Lee, Executive Director 

Agenda Packet  Page 4 of 171



 
Regular Joint Meeting 

of the Executive Committee 
and the User Committee 

October 16, 2018 
 

Page 1 of 5 
 

October 16, 2018  
 

MINUTES OF A REGULAR MEETING 
OF THE EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE 
AND THE USER COMMITTEE 

 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER 
 
 The Executive Committee and the User Committee convened in a regular joint session at 
2:00 PM on Tuesday, October 16, 2018, in the second floor conference room of the South Bay 
Regional Public Communications Authority, 4440 W. Broadway, Hawthorne, CA. 

 
 ROLL CALL 
 
 Present: City Manager Ed Medrano, City of Gardena 
   City Manager Bruce Moe, City of Manhattan Beach 
   Interim City Manager Arnie Shadbehr, City of Hawthorne 
   Chief Robert Fager, Hawthorne Police Department 
   Chief Tom Kang, Gardena Police Department 
 
 Absent: Chief Derrick Abell, Manhattan Beach Police Department 
  
 Also Present: Executive Director Erick Lee 
   Operations Manager Shannon Kauffman 
   Administrative Services Manager John Krok 
   Interim Finance Manager Shally Lin 
   Captain Sam Agaiby, Culver City Police Department 
   Lt. Leon Lopez, Culver City Police Department    
 
 

2. PUBLIC DISCUSSION 
 

 None. 
 
 

3. ACTION ITEMS 
 

 3a. Minutes – Regular Joint Meeting September 18, 2018 
 

 MOTION:  City Manager Moe moved to approve the minutes of the regular joint 
meeting of the Executive Committee and the User Committee on September 18, 2018 as 
written.  The motion was seconded by Interim City Manager Shadbehr and passed by 
unanimous voice vote. 

 
 

Agenda Packet  Page 5 of 171



 
Regular Joint Meeting 

of the Executive Committee 
and the User Committee 

October 16, 2018 
 

Page 2 of 5 
 

 3b. Check Register for September 2018 
 

 City Manager Moe moved to approve the check register for September 2018.  The 
motion was seconded by Interim City Manager Shadbehr and passed by unanimous voice 
vote. 
 

 3c. Approve a Fiscal Year 2018/19 Blanket Purchase Order to Motorola 
Solutions, Inc. for Supplies and Equipment in a Total Amount Not to Exceed 
$50,000 

 
  Executive Director Lee advised that these costs are reimbursable to the Authority. 
 

  MOTION:  City Manager Moe moved to approve the proposed 2018/2019 blanket 
purchase order to Motorola Solutions, Inc. for supplies and equipment in a total not to 
exceed $50,000. 

  
 3d. Designation of Representative Regarding Potential Amendments to the 

Executive Director’s Employment Agreement 
 

 MOTION:  City Manager Moe moved to designate City Manager Medrano to serve 
as the Authority’s representative to negotiate an amended employment agreement with 
Executive Director Lee  The motion was seconded by Interim City Manager Shadbehr and 
passed by unanimous voice vote. 

 
 3e. Publicly Available Pay Schedule 

  
  Executive Director Lee explained that a salary schedule reflecting all Authority 

positions and associated salaries is required to meet the California Public Employees’ 
Retirement System (CalPERS) requirements of Government Code § 20636(b)(1) and 
CCR § 570.5. 

 
  City Manager Moe observed that the Financial Accountant salary appears to be 

high and he suggested that a survey for the position be conducted. 
 

  Executive Director Lee confirmed that, prior to filling the position, the Financial 
Accountant salary will be presented for further consideration by the Executive Committee 
at a future meeting. 

 
 MOTION:  Interim City Manager Shadbehr moved to approve the Authority’s salary 
schedule as proposed, with the understanding that the Financial Accountant salary will be 
further reviewed by Authority staff and the Executive Committee.  

 
 
 
 
  

Agenda Packet  Page 6 of 171



 
Regular Joint Meeting 

of the Executive Committee 
and the User Committee 

October 16, 2018 
 

Page 3 of 5 
 

 3f. Authorize the Executive Director to Execute an Agreement with Commline 
Incorporated for Radio Engraving and Programming Services; and 

 
 Approve a Corresponding Purchase Order in the Amount of $116,045 for 

These Services 
 

  Executive Director Lee advised that there is no written agreement between the 
Authority and Commline to compensate Commline for the mobile and portable radio 
engraving and programming currently under way for the Interoperability Network of the 
South Bay (INSB).  However, these services were informally approved in late 2017.  
Director Lee explained that $2,670 of the $116,045 cost is associated with Authority-
owned radios and, therefore, $113,375 will be billed back to Gardena, Hawthorne, 
Manhattan Beach, El Segundo and Hermosa Beach per the “Communication Equipment 
Purchase and Reimbursement Agreements” between those cities and the Authority. 

 
  MOTION:  City Manager Moe moved to ratify the proposed agreement with 
Commline Incorporated for radio engraving and programming services and approve a 
corresponding purchase order in the amount of $116,045.  The motion was seconded by 
City Manager Medrano and passed by unanimous voice vote. 

 
 3g. Confirmation of Meeting Dates for Remainder of 2018 
 

 The Executive Committee confirmed the dates for the regular joint meetings of the 
Executive Committee and User Committee for the remainder of 2018.  

 
 Executive Director Lee noted the possibility that the December meeting could be 
cancelled if there are no substantial items to be discussed. 

 
 
4. INFORMATIONAL ITEMS 

 
 4a. Mobile Data Computer (MDC) Management with the Implementation  of the 

Mark43 System 
 

 Administrative Services Manager Krok explained that, with the new Mark 43 Cloud-
based computer aided dispatch (CAD) system, the need for data sourcing from the public 
safety vehicles to be processed by either Hawthorne’s or the Authority’s network will be 
eliminated, which will allow the cities to assume local control of their mobile data 
computers (MDCs) and manage them like public safety desktops. 

 
City Manager Medrano related Gardena’s concerns associated with this idea. 
 

 Captain Ishii voiced his understanding that Hawthorne IT and Gardena IT have 
discussed this transition. 

 

Agenda Packet  Page 7 of 171



 
Regular Joint Meeting 

of the Executive Committee 
and the User Committee 

October 16, 2018 
 

Page 4 of 5 
 

 Executive Director Lee noted that this has been discussed at the Police Task Force 
and Mark 43 meetings.  He indicated that, as it becomes available, updated information 
will be provided to the Executive and User Committees.   

 
4b. Interoperability Network of the South Bay (INSB) Remote Access Points’ (RAPs) 

Installation Project 
 

  Administrative Services Manager Krok shared information on the anticipated go 
live date for the Interoperability Network of the South Bay (INSB).  He noted the 
importance of purchasing remote access points (RAPs) for over-the-air radio 
programming. 

 
 Executive Director Lee advised that Hawthorne Police Department has installed 
RAPs and Manhattan Beach Police Department is in the process of doing so. 

 
 Administrative Services Manager suggested that Gardena Police Department 
contact Josh Armstrong, Hawthorne IT, to purchase them. 

 
 
5. EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR’S REPORT 

 
 5a. Executive Director Lee reported on the status of the following items: the Authority’s 

hiring efforts for the position of communications operator; the first reimbursement request 
for the 2016 Urban Area Security Initiative (UASI) Grant; the Authority’s purchase of cyber 
liability insurance; and the frequency split involving Manhattan and Hermosa Beach 
Parking & Animal Control. 

 
 
6. EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE AND USER COMMITTEE COMMENTS 

 
None. 

 
 

7.   CLOSED SESSION AGENDA 
 

Per Government Code Section 54957.6, at 2:20 PM, the Executive Committee entered 
into a closed session to discuss the following matters: 

 
Conference Re: Public Employee Performance Evaluation 
Re:  Executive Director 

 
Conference Re:  Labor Negotiations 
Re: Teamsters Local 9-1-1 

 
Conference Re:  Labor Negotiations 
Re: Communications Workers of America 

Agenda Packet  Page 8 of 171



 
Regular Joint Meeting 

of the Executive Committee 
and the User Committee 

October 16, 2018 
 

Page 5 of 5 
 

  
Conference Re:  Labor Negotiations 
Re: Management & Confidential Employees 

 
 

 The meeting returned to open session at 2:40 PM, with no action taken in closed session. 
 
 

8. ADJOURNMENT 
 
 The meeting was adjourned at 2:41 PM. 

Agenda Packet  Page 9 of 171



Check Register FY 2018-19

October 2018

Accounts Payable Check Issued Date Total Check Amount

October 12, 2018 $163,783.29
October 26, 2018 $343,959.46

Accounts Payable Total $507,742.75

Payroll Checks issued Date

October 12, 2018 $176,149.52
October 26, 2018 $191,518.16

Payroll Total $367,667.68

Grand Total $875,410.43

Agenda Packet  Page 10 of 171



Agenda Packet  Page 11 of 171



Agenda Packet  Page 12 of 171



Agenda Packet  Page 13 of 171



Agenda Packet  Page 14 of 171



Agenda Packet  Page 15 of 171



10/24/2018
Check List

South Bay Regional PCA
1

 5:40:17PM
Page:apChkLst Final

Bank :  union UNION BANK

Check TotalAmount PaidDescriptionInv DateInvoiceVendorDateCheck #

4675328235 10/16/2018 WATER SERV HQ/09-17-18 TO 10-15-18CALIFORNIA WATER SERVICE CO.0001210/26/2018 1662  218.57
 363.735550731926 9/28/2018 FIRE PROTECTION SERV/AUG, SETP 2018  145.16

15444637 10/1/2018 UNFUNDED LIAB PMT-PLAN 1232/SEPT 2018  28,295.57CALPERS0005810/26/2018 1663  28,295.57
9019 9/25/2018 DIRECTV SERVICE/AUG 2018FIRST BANKCARD0062110/26/2018 1664  1,993.84
3754 9/25/2018 TRAVEL  723.31
4454 9/25/2018 SOCIETY OF MUN  330.00
6439 9/25/2018 CABLE  209.13
09252018 9/25/2018 JOB FAIR SERVICE  3,406.95 150.67
102618 10/18/2018 RETIREE MED PREM/NOV 2018  581.48AGEE, BONNIE0000410/26/2018 53744  581.48
A30034 10/2/2018 LINEAR MICROTHIN CLEAR/ PO 701204194ALERTE SYSTEMS INC0015310/26/2018 53745  1,573.92

 1,987.99A30047 10/2/2018 LINEAR MICROTHIN CLEAR/PO 701204194  414.07
11910718 9/13/2018 PHONE SERV/07-13 TO 08-12-18ATT PAYMENT CENTER0006410/26/2018 53746  2,525.57
960 461-1623 10/1/2018 PHONE SERV/9-2 TO 10-01-18  2,013.80
11996022 10/3/2018 PHONE SERV/09-03 TO 10-02-18  720.59
11917918 9/13/2018 PHONE SERV/08-13 TO 09-12-18  196.58
11914854 9/13/2018 PHONE SERV/08-13 TO 08-12-18  5,552.13 95.59
58486 9/9/2018 CRITICALL ANNUAL SOFTWARE LICENSE  3,995.00BIDDLE CONSULTING GROUP, INC0074710/26/2018 53747  3,995.00
102618 10/26/2018 RETIREE MED PREM/NOV 2018  178.84CARTER, ALLENE0008010/26/2018 53748  178.84
PMH3974 10/4/2018 ROUTER/PO 701204197CDW GOVERNMENT, INC.0001410/26/2018 53749  9,040.50
PMH3970 10/4/2018 ROUTERS /PO 701204198  3,390.19
PJZ0835 9/26/2018 ROUTERS /PO 701204181  1,130.06
PJJ7441 9/25/2018 MONITORS/PO 701204187  13,595.93 35.18
640445 9/23/2018 WATER TREATMENT SVCS/SEPT 18  78.50CHEM PRO LABORATORY, INC.0001710/26/2018 53750  78.50
53781810 9/21/2018 GAS CARD 07/22-09/21/2018  373.97CHEVRON AND TEXACO0001510/26/2018 53751  373.97
427319341 9/21/2018 FLOOR MAT CLEANING  93.27CINTAS CORPORATION #4270001910/26/2018 53752  93.27
1185911 10/3/2018 SPEAKER BRACKET  151.07CODE 3 INC0015610/26/2018 53753  151.07
01143360 9/28/2018 MONTHLY SERVICE/OCTT 2018  12,500.00COMMLINE INC0022510/26/2018 53754  12,500.00
102618 10/26/2018 RETIREE MED PREM/NOV 2018  822.50COX, CHRISTOPHER0007810/26/2018 53755  822.50
102618 10/26/2018 RETIREE MED PREM/NOV 2018  595.50CURRY, REBECCA0010210/26/2018 53756  595.50
65198537 10/16/2018 INSTALL PARTS  348.71DIGI-KEY ELECTRONICS 24654600044910/26/2018 53757  348.71
CD1906002905 9/28/2018 CREDIT CHECK  8.40EXPERIAN0078510/26/2018 53758  8.40

1Page:

Agenda Packet  Page 16 of 171



10/24/2018
Check List

South Bay Regional PCA
2

 5:40:17PM
Page:apChkLst Final

Bank :  union UNION BANK (Continued)

Check TotalAmount PaidDescriptionInv DateInvoiceVendorDateCheck #

7006320 9/27/2018 RUMBLER SIREN SYSTEM/PO 701204170FEDERAL SIGNAL CORP0000810/26/2018 53759  522.00
6981895 8/28/2018 RUMBLER SIREN SYSTEM/PO 701204157  427.82
7013023 10/5/2018 RUMBLER SIREN SYSTEM/PO 701204133  293.02
7010958 10/3/2018 RUMBLER SIREN SYSTEM/PO 701204193  202.47
6967248 10/8/2010 RUMBLER SIREN SYSTEM/PO 701204106  1,530.31 85.00
2091502446103183510/1/2018 PHONE SERV /10-01 TO 11-30-18FRONTIER0065110/26/2018 53760  38.94
2091502447092683510/1/2018 PHONE SERV /10-01 TO 11-30-18  38.94
3103752741011110510/1/2018 PHONE SERV /10-01 TO 11-30-18  224.54
2090518701060302510/1/2018 PHONE SERV /10-01 TO 11-30-18  92.35
7002Z664-S-1827810/5/2018 PHONE SERV/10-05 TO 11-04-18  57.35
2091505969092383510/1/2018 PHONE SERV /10-01 TO 11-30-18  52.11
2130381666083002510/1/2018 PHONE SERV /10-10 TO 11-09-18  47.97
2091505978113083510/1/2018 PHONE SERV /10-01 TO 11-30-18  597.49 45.29
7002Z665-S-1827810/10/5018 PHONE SERV/10-05 TO 11-04-18FRONTIER0065110/26/2018 53761  39.15

 78.092091510998020995510/1/2018 PHONE SERV /10-01 TO 11-30-18  38.94
093018 9/30/2018 GARDENING SERV/SEPT 2018  440.00FUKUI, KAZ0001810/26/2018 53762  440.00
10262018 10/26/2018 UNIFORMS/ APR, MAY, JUNE 2018  4,661.43GALLS, LLC0020310/26/2018 53763  4,661.43
102618 10/26/2018 RETIREE MED PREM/NOV 2018  249.30HALL, JANEY0002510/26/2018 53764  249.30
563657 9/26/2018 DOCKING STATIONS/PO 701204164HAVIS INC.0002710/26/2018 53765  2,491.04
564314 10/2/2018 DOCKING STATIONS/PO 701204186  1,820.19
564928 10/8/2018 DOCKING STATIONS/PO 701204195  1,516.80
562796 9/18/2018 DOCKING STATIONS/PO 701204164  1,039.39
564640 10/4/2018 DOCKING STATIONS/PO 701204190  7,642.53 775.11
560693 8/25/2018 DOCKING STATIONS/PO 701204143  586.31HAVIS INC.0002710/26/2018 53766  586.31
187562 - 187541 8/29/2018 TOUCHSCREEN KIT  860.75HEARTLAND SERVICES, INC0054210/26/2018 53767  860.75
60353225005238519/30/2018 TECH SHOP SUPPLIES - SINK HOLE COVER  39.49HOME DEPOT CREDIT SERVICES0003510/26/2018 53768  39.49
102618 10/26/2018 RETIREE MED PREM/NOV 2018  449.33HYMES, MARY0027210/26/2018 53769  449.33
10999 9/14/2018 MAGNETIC MIC PACK/PO 7012041742  1,598.99INNOVATIVE PRODUCTS, INC.0065410/26/2018 53770  1,598.99
10180689 10/1/2018 JANITOR SERVICE/OCT 2018JANI-KING OF CALIF INC.0003910/26/2018 53771  2,237.49

 2,276.5707180960 7/24/2018 FINEZA ALL PRPSE CLNR  39.08
093018 9/30/2018 UNIFORMS & TAILORING CHARGES  1,396.66LA UNIFORMS & TAILORING0079910/26/2018 53772  1,396.66
11144 10/10/2018 SEATBELT SYS. FORD SUV/PO 701204208  1,862.00LAGUNA MANUFACTURING INC0020810/26/2018 53773  1,862.00
9306140210 9/21/2018 INSTALL PARTS/TECH SHOPLAWSON PRODUCTS, INC.0044210/26/2018 53774  246.79
9306090038 7/31/2018 INSTALL PARTS/TECH SHOP  215.80
9306090039 8/31/2018 INSTALL PARTS/TECH SHOP  588.28 125.69

2Page:

Agenda Packet  Page 17 of 171



10/24/2018
Check List

South Bay Regional PCA
3

 5:40:17PM
Page:apChkLst Final

Bank :  union UNION BANK (Continued)

Check TotalAmount PaidDescriptionInv DateInvoiceVendorDateCheck #

118154 7/27/2018 KEYBOARDS AND TABDOCKS/PO 701204088LEHR AUTO0034510/26/2018 53775  6,966.97
 12,311.89118410 8/2/2018 KEYBOARDS AND TABDOCKS  5,344.92

120292 9/24/2018 KEYBOARDS AND TABDOCKS  330.75LEHR AUTO0034510/26/2018 53776  330.75
102618 10/26/2018 RETIREE MED PREM/NOV 2018  522.67MEADORS, LATANYA0011610/26/2018 53777  522.67
336861 10/1/2018 ELEVATOR MAINT  638.93MITSUBISHI ELECTRIC INC0033110/26/2018 53778  638.93
41254393 7/30/2018 RADIOS & INSTALL HRD/SFT  1,599.29MOTOROLA SOLUTIONS, INC.0004710/26/2018 53779  1,599.29
128800 10/19/2018 STAFFING SERVICES/10-06 TO 10-19-18  6,166.88MUNITEMPS0079110/26/2018 53780  6,166.88
41101 10/5/2018 REPLACE ID SIGN  181.77NATIONAL VISUAL SYSTEMS0004910/26/2018 53781  181.77
1969 - 1972 9/20/2018 CAR WASH SERV/ SHOP TRUCK & VAN  100.00NEW LOOK AUTO DETAIL0057710/26/2018 53782  100.00
102218 10/22/2018 MILEAGE REIMBURSEMENT  356.33PETTY CASH, SBRPCA0080410/26/2018 53783  356.33
155330 -155236 9/28/2018 LABOR PLUMBER  525.00PHILLIPS PLUMBING0077710/26/2018 53784  525.00
60364 9/17/2018 EMD ONLINE TRAINING  1,032.00POWERPHONE INC0014110/26/2018 53785  1,032.00
124605 9/25/2018 RADIO REPLACEMENT  1,818.60PVP COMMUNICATIONS INC0014210/26/2018 53786  1,818.60
102618 10/26/2018 RETIREE MED PREM/NOV 2018  822.50RIVERA, JOSE0006010/26/2018 53787  822.50
RMH18-135 10/18/2018 VIDEO SERVICE  18,520.00ROBIN MEDIA HOUSE, INC.0080510/26/2018 53788  18,520.00
18-0926-90,18-1008-510/8/2018 PSYCH EVALUATION  800.00SAXE-CLIFFORD PHD, SUSAN0014410/26/2018 53789  800.00
170473 9/28/2018 ALUMINUM BUMPER/PO 701204169  4,626.32SETINA MFG CO INC0014510/26/2018 53790  4,626.32
170887 10/5/2018 ALUMINUM BUMPER/PO 701204169  2,732.90SETINA MFG CO INC0014510/26/2018 53791  2,732.90
162 10/1/2018 WEB HOSTING & LICENSING/NOV 2018  225.00SHARK STUDIOS INC.0006610/26/2018 53792  225.00
102618 10/26/2018 RETIREE MED PREM/NOV 2018  449.33SHAW, LILLIAN0027310/26/2018 53793  449.33
102918 10/26/2018 RETIREE MED PREM/NOV 2018SHEAREN, KENNETH0007910/26/2018 53794  529.30

 1,058.60102618 10/26/2018 RETIREE MED PREM/NOV 2018  529.30
398517 10/2/2018 ANNUAL MAINTENANCE RENEWAL  2,211.00SOLARWINDS0061910/26/2018 53795  2,211.00
3-020-1732-98 10/19/2018 ELEC SERV HQ/09-09-18 TO 10-10-18~  7,863.23SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA EDISON CO.0006910/26/2018 53796  7,863.23
18193479 090718 9/7/2018 FILTRATION SYSTEM RENTALSPARKLETTS0080310/26/2018 53797  38.14

 71.1418193479 100518 10/5/2018 FILTRATION SYSTEM RENTAL  33.00
1133787062418 9/24/2018 1133787062418  1,900.00SPECTRUM BUSINESS0046010/26/2018 53798  1,900.00
155018370-084 9/29/2018 DAC CHARGES/8-26 TO 9-25-2018SPRINT0030210/26/2018 53799  7,346.92

 7,432.90107177860-089 9/27/2018 WIRELESS MODEMS/8-24 TO 9-23-2018  85.98
60355178108091519/30/2018 OFFICE SUPPLIES/SEPT 2018STAPLES INC.0007410/26/2018 53800  1,020.35

 1,692.9360355178108091518/30/2018 OFFICE SUPPLIES/AUG 2018  672.58
102618 10/26/2018 RETIREE MED PREM/NOV 2018  464.75STEVENS, DEBORAH0012610/26/2018 53801  464.75
102618 10/26/2018 RETIREE MED PREM/NOV2018  581.48STEVENS, GARY0003410/26/2018 53802  581.48

3Page:

Agenda Packet  Page 18 of 171



10/24/2018
Check List

South Bay Regional PCA
4

 5:40:17PM
Page:apChkLst Final

Bank :  union UNION BANK (Continued)

Check TotalAmount PaidDescriptionInv DateInvoiceVendorDateCheck #

10315993 10/8/2018 INSTALL PARTS 10315993TALLEY INCORPORATED0003610/26/2018 53803  1,369.61
10313737 9/14/2018 INSTALL PARTS/PO 701204165  1,030.44
10316262 10/10/2018 INSTALL PARTS/PO 701204200  763.80
10314216 9/19/2018 INSTALL PARTS/PO 701204165  574.95
10313623 9/13/2018 INSTALL PARTS/PO 701204165  3,891.17 152.37
04106 9/1/2018 TECH SHOP SUPPLIES  82.13TORRANCE ELECTRONICS0003810/26/2018 53804  82.13
16661 9/12/2018 UV SEAL KIT  180.47TROY SHEET METAL WORKS, INC.0071110/26/2018 53805  180.47
3409866 10/5/2018 PRE-EMP PHYSICAL  344.00U.S. HEALTHWORKS MED GROUP0014910/26/2018 53806  344.00
9815258970 9/23/2018 GPD DAC CHARGES/08-24 TO 08-23-18VERIZON WIRELESS0017110/26/2018 53807  1,320.78
9815185298 9/23/2018 MODEM SVC. MBPD/08-24 TO 09-23-18  342.09
9814870687 9/18/2018 CELL PH. CHGS. 08-19 TO 09-18-18  270.35
9813342777 9/23/2018 DAC CHARGES HPD/07-24 TO 08-23-18  231.97
9813327475 9/23/2018 MODEM SVC. MBPD/08-24 TO 09-23-18  2,203.20 38.01
102918 10/26/2018 RETIREE MED PREM/NOV 2018  197.76WEISMAN, LUCIA0013110/26/2018 53808  197.76
60653 9/18/2018 LIGHTS FOR HEADQUARTERS  157.03WEST-LITE SUPPLY COMPANY, INC.0043610/26/2018 53809  157.03
421565 10/1/2018 LED LIGHTSWHELEN ENGINEERING CO., INC.0006310/26/2018 53810  2,000.22
421764 10/1/2108 LED LIGHTS  423.36
412954 9/14/2018 LED LIGHTS  317.52
414927 9/19/2018 LED LIGHTS  261.29
417099 9/21/2018 LED LIGHTS  3,073.17 70.78
092618 9/26/2018 POLYGRAPH EXAM  275.00WYENN & ASSOCIATES0029910/26/2018 53811  275.00
19634 9/20/2018 SERVICES AIIU CIY LINE LTAKINGXCEL MECHANICAL SYSTEMS0006710/26/2018 53812  2,128.00

 2,335.0019598 9/12/2018 BOILER INSPECTION  207.00
1334392 10/10/2018 LRASE/USAGEXEROX FINANCIAL SERVICES0073510/26/2018 53813  1,281.84

 2,563.211303615 9/11/2018 LEASE/USAGE  1,281.37

Sub total for UNION BANK:  190,125.40

4Page:

Agenda Packet  Page 19 of 171



10/24/2018
Check List

South Bay Regional PCA
5

 5:40:17PM
Page:apChkLst Final

checks in this report. Grand Total All Checks: 73  190,125.40

5Page:

Agenda Packet  Page 20 of 171



Page 1 of 2 

  
 

        Staff Report 
South Bay Regional Public Communications 

Authority 
 
MEETING DATE: November 20, 2018 
 
ITEM:   C3 
 
TO:   Executive Committee 
 
COPY TO:  Tim Lilligren, Treasurer  
 
FROM:  Erick B. Lee, Executive Director  
   Shally Lin, Interim Finance Manager 
 
SUBJECT:  CASH & INVESTMENTS REPORT - SEPTEMBER 30, 2018 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 1. Cash & Investments Report for September 30, 2018 

2. LAIF Quarter End Statement for September 30, 2018 
   3. PMIA Average Monthly Yields as of September 30, 2018 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
Staff recommends that the Executive Committee receive and file the Cash & 
Investments Report for September 30, 2018.  
 
 
BACKGROUND 
Section 53646 (a) (2) of the Government Code, states that the treasurer or chief fiscal 
officer may render a quarterly report (regarding the local agency’s cash and  
investments) to the chief executive officer, the internal auditor, and the legislative body 
of the local agency.  The quarterly report shall be so submitted within 30 days following 
the end of the quarter covered by the report.  The legislative body of a local agency may 
elect to require the report specified in subdivision (b) to be made on a monthly basis 
instead of quarterly. 
 
At the November 21, 2006 meeting, the Executive Committee elected to receive the 
Cash & Investments Report on a quarterly basis.  
 
 
 

Agenda Packet  Page 21 of 171



Page 2 of 2 

DISCUSSION 
Staff has completed the bank reconciliation for September 30, 2018.  Attached is the 
Cash & Investments Report for the period (Attachment #1). 
 
All idle cash of the Authority is invested 100% with the State’s Local Agency Investment 
Fund (LAIF), incompliance with the Statement of Investment Policy.   The LAIF Quarter 
End Statement for September 30, 2018 (Attachment #2) and PMIA Average Monthly 
Yields (Attachment #3) are also included with this report.  Interest earned for the quarter 
totaled $28,730.68.  
 
LAIF’s monthly performance continues on a stable path with moderate increases on a 
regular basis.   
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
None.  

Agenda Packet  Page 22 of 171



ATTACHMENT #1 

Agenda Item C3 

Agenda Packet  Page 23 of 171



Cash and Investments Report
September 30, 2018

Funding Source Bank Deposits Outstanding Book
Balance in Transit Checks Balance

Active Accounts

MUFG Union Bank 1 1,888,013.51$   (220,736.69)$  1,667,276.82$  
  (General/Payroll)

Investments

LAIF 1 4,623,538.53$   -$   -$   4,623,538.53$  

Total Investments 4,623,538.53$   -$   -$   4,623,538.53$  

Other Cash on Hand

Petty Cash -$   -$   -$   500.00$   
Vending Machine Petty Cash -$   -$   -$   316.36$   

816.36$   

Total Cash & Investments 6,292,131.71$  

Breakdown of cash by fund:
Fund 10 (Enterprise Fund) 1,558,948.01$  
Fund 20 (SHSGP Grant Fund) 108,328.80       
Total 1,667,276.82$  

Notes:
1. LAIF's interest rate as of September 30, 2018 will be reported at the Executive Committee meeting on
November 20, 2018.  Interest earned for the fourth quarter ending September 30, 2018 will also be reported.

Agenda Packet  Page 24 of 171



ATTACHMENT #2 

Agenda Item C3 

Agenda Packet  Page 25 of 171



BETTY T. YEE

California State Controller

LOCAL AGENCY INVESTMENT FUND
REMITTANCE ADVICE

Agency Name SO BAY REGIONAL PUB COMMUN ATH

Account Number 15-19-001

As of 10/15/2018, your Local Agency Investment Fund account has been directly credited 
with the interest earned on your deposits for the quarter ending 09/30/2018.

Earnings Ratio .00005909460836489

Interest Rate 2.16%

Dollar Day Total $ 486,181,048.04

Quarter End Principal Balance $ 4,623,538.53

Quarterly Interest Earned $ 28,730.68

Page 1 of 1Untitled Page

11/8/2018http://laif.sco.ca.gov/Result.aspx

Agenda Packet  Page 26 of 171



ATTACHMENT #3 

Agenda Item C3 

Agenda Packet  Page 27 of 171



Agenda Packet  Page 28 of 171



 Page 1 of 1 

        Staff Report 
South Bay Regional Public Communications 

Authority 
 
 
MEETING DATE: November 20, 2018 
 
ITEM:   C4 
 
TO:   Executive Committee     
 
FROM:  Erick B. Lee, Executive Director 
 
SUBJECT: BUDGET PERFORMANCE REPORT - THROUGH OCTOBER 

31, 2018 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 1.   Revenue Status Report 

2. Expenditure Status Report 
 
RECOMMENDATION  
Staff recommends that the Executive Committee receive and file the Budget Performance 
Report for the period July 1, 2018 through October 31, 2018. 
 
DISCUSSION 
Staff has analyzed the Authority’s financial activities through October 31, 2018. The 
Authority has received 60% of its assessment revenues from its member cities and 50% 
of its assessment revenues from its contract cities.  These amounts conform to the terms 
of the Authority’s Bylaws and its agreements with the contract cities.   
 
Additionally, the revenue report (Attachment #1) recognizes the accrual of $4,773,979.70 
in reimbursements associated with the Communication Equipment Purchase and 
Reimbursement agreements with the three (3) member cities and two (2) South Bay 
contract cities that was not included in the adopted budget.  This amount is anticipated to 
be fully expended by December 31, 2018. 
 
As it relates to expenditures (Attachment #2), 24.55% of the budget has been expended.  
This represents an underrun of 8.78% in terms of expenditures incurred through the first 
1/3 of the fiscal year.  When the $1,733,647 appropriated by the Board of Directors on 
October 11, 2018 for the Communication Equipment Purchase and Reimbursement 
project is excluded, 28.07% of the budget has been expended and the underrun projection 
is reduced to 5.26%.  Period expenses for salary and benefits accounted for 27.22% of 
their budgeted amounts, across all departments. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
None. 

Agenda Packet  Page 29 of 171



ATTACHMENT #1 

Agenda Item C4  

Agenda Packet  Page 30 of 171



11/08/2018
South Bay Regional PCA

1
 3:03PM

Page:revstat.rpt Revenue Status Report

7/1/2018 through 10/31/2018
Periods: 0 through 4

SBRPCA Enterprise Fund10

Account Number
Adjusted 
Estimate Revenues

Year-to-date 
Revenues Balance

Prct 
Rcvd

10-50                  Administration

10-50-111          Administration

10-50-111-4110   Gardena  2,391,301.00  1,434,780.60  1,434,780.60  956,520.40  60.00

10-50-111-4120   Hawthorne  3,359,598.00  2,015,758.80  2,015,758.80  1,343,839.20  60.00

10-50-111-4130   Manhattan Beach  1,703,280.00  1,021,968.00  1,021,968.00  681,312.00  60.00

10-50-111-4140   Hermosa Beach  828,439.00  414,219.63  414,219.63  414,219.37  50.00

10-50-111-4145   El Segundo  1,330,766.00  665,383.50  665,383.50  665,382.50  50.00

10-50-111-4146   Culver City Assessment  2,507,365.00  1,253,682.48  1,253,682.48  1,253,682.52  50.00

10-50-111-4150   El Camino Community College  790.00  0.00  0.00  790.00  0.00

10-50-111-4153   Medical Director Service/Manhattan Beach  27,000.00  0.00  0.00  27,000.00  0.00

10-50-111-4154   Medical Director Services/El Segundo  27,000.00  0.00  0.00  27,000.00  0.00

10-50-111-4210   Investment Earnings (LAIF)  57,173.00  0.00  0.00  57,173.00  0.00

10-50-111-4220   POST Reimbursements  600.00  0.00  0.00  600.00  0.00

10-50-111-4255   Unrealized Gain/Loss on Investments  0.00 -8,632.47 -8,632.47  8,632.47  0.00

10-50-111-4430   Other Miscellaneous Revenue  2,500.00  4,861,252.69  4,861,252.69 -4,858,752.69  194450.11

Total Administration  95.28 12,235,812.00  11,658,413.23  11,658,413.23  577,398.77

10-60                  Operations

10-60-211          Communications Center

10-60-211-4215   DUI Reimbursement-Overtime  2,000.00  429.99  429.99  1,570.01  21.50

10-60-211-4435   Reimbursements Sprint Wireless  77,289.00  0.00  0.00  77,289.00  0.00

10-60-211-4440   Reimbursements/Verizon Wireless  15,229.00  0.00  0.00  15,229.00  0.00

1Page:

Agenda Packet  Page 31 of 171



11/08/2018
South Bay Regional PCA

2
 3:03PM

Page:revstat.rpt Revenue Status Report

7/1/2018 through 10/31/2018
Periods: 0 through 4

SBRPCA Enterprise Fund10

Account Number
Adjusted 
Estimate Revenues

Year-to-date 
Revenues Balance

Prct 
Rcvd

10-60-211-4460   Pink Patch Project  0.00  356.33  356.33 -356.33  0.00

Total Operations  0.83 94,518.00  786.32  786.32  93,731.68

10-70                  Technical Services

10-70-311          Technical Services

10-70-311-4310   Labor-Installation-Member  0.00  158,132.95  158,132.95 -158,132.95  0.00

10-70-311-4360   Reimbursements for Billable Parts  642,397.00  81,682.60  81,682.60  560,714.40  12.72

10-70-311-4370   Reimbursements for GST Software  50,000.00  0.00  0.00  50,000.00  0.00

10-70-311-4371   Reimbursement ES Chat Software  100,000.00  0.00  0.00  100,000.00  0.00

10-70-311-4375   Reimb Net Motion Licenses & Maint.  31,000.00  0.00  0.00  31,000.00  0.00

Total Technical Services  29.13 823,397.00  239,815.55  239,815.55  583,581.45

 1,254,711.90 11,899,015.10 11,899,015.10 13,153,727.00  90.46Total SBRPCA Enterprise Fund

2Page:

Agenda Packet  Page 32 of 171



11/08/2018
South Bay Regional PCA

3
 3:03PM

Page:revstat.rpt Revenue Status Report

7/1/2018 through 10/31/2018
Periods: 0 through 4

Grant Fund20

Account Number
Adjusted 
Estimate Revenues

Year-to-date 
Revenues Balance

Prct 
Rcvd

20-80                  Capital Infrastructure Projects

20-80-433          Consulting/Vector Resources

 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00  0.00Total Grant Fund

Grand Total  13,153,727.00  11,899,015.10  11,899,015.10  1,254,711.90  90.46

3Page:

Agenda Packet  Page 33 of 171



ATTACHMENT #2 

Agenda Item C4 

Agenda Packet  Page 34 of 171



             

11/08/2018
South Bay Regional PCA

1
 3:02PM

Page:expstat.rpt Expenditure Status Report

7/1/2018 through 10/31/2018
Periods: 0 through 4

SBRPCA Enterprise Fund10

Account Number
Adjusted 

Appropriation Expenditures
Year-to-date 
Expenditures

Year-to-date 
Encumbrances Balance

Prct 
Used

50                  Administration

50-100          Administration

50-100-5000   Expenditures

 879,724.00  205,886.27  205,886.27 23.4050-111-5101   Salaries (Full-Time)  0.00  673,837.73
 0.00  189.39  189.39 0.0050-111-5104   Acting Pay  0.00 -189.39

 3,000.00  0.00  0.00 0.0050-111-5107   Merit Pay  0.00  3,000.00
 29,269.00  10,807.96  10,807.96 36.9350-111-5108   Sick Leave Payoff  0.00  18,461.04
 35,680.00  13,371.62  13,371.62 37.4850-111-5109   Vacation Leave Payoff  0.00  22,308.38
 80,873.00  18,211.90  18,211.90 22.5250-111-5201   Medical Insurance  0.00  62,661.10

 5,764.00  1,237.20  1,237.20 21.4650-111-5202   Dental Insurance  0.00  4,526.80
 1,726.00  438.20  438.20 25.3950-111-5203   Vision Insurance  0.00  1,287.80

 814.00  194.15  194.15 23.8550-111-5204   Life Insurance  0.00  619.85
 14,150.00  3,425.51  3,425.51 24.2150-111-5205   Medicare  0.00  10,724.49
 11,482.00  2,536.58  2,536.58 22.0950-111-5207   Workers' Compensation  0.00  8,945.42

 143,528.00  30,369.65  30,369.65 21.1650-111-5208   PERS Contributions  0.00  113,158.35
 13,499.00  4,145.64  4,145.64 30.7150-111-5209   Retirees' Medical Insurance  0.00  9,353.36
 10,800.00  1,854.00  1,854.00 17.1750-111-5212   Deferred Comp Matching Benefit  0.00  8,946.00
 31,000.00  7,671.14  7,671.14 24.7550-111-5301   Communications Contract Services  0.00  23,328.86
 90,000.00  360.00  360.00 0.4050-111-5302   Computer Contract Services/CAD-Tiburon  0.00  89,640.00
 18,000.00  1,050.00  1,050.00 5.8350-111-5304   Accounting/Auditing Services  0.00  16,950.00
 45,000.00  0.00  0.00 0.0050-111-5305   Legal Services  0.00  45,000.00
 86,173.00  35,616.20  35,616.20 114.7350-111-5306   Recruitment Costs  63,250.00 -12,693.20

 148,074.00  19,033.69  19,033.69 22.9850-111-5307   Software Maintenance Services  15,000.00  114,040.31
 6,000.00  1,592.58  1,592.58 26.5450-111-5308   Banking Services (Fees)  0.00  4,407.42

 15,000.00  1,010.00  1,010.00 6.7350-111-5309   Online/Website Maintenance Services  0.00  13,990.00
 54,000.00  13,749.99  13,749.99 25.4650-111-5312   Medical Director Services/Paramedics  0.00  40,250.01
 50,000.00  48,233.52  48,233.52 196.4750-111-5313   Temporary Staffing Services  50,000.00 -48,233.52

 870.00  400.00  400.00 45.9850-111-5401   Memberships & Dues  0.00  470.00
 350.00  1,009.22  1,009.22 288.3550-111-5402   Publications  0.00 -659.22

 5,606.00  5,818.00  5,818.00 103.7850-111-5403   Conferences, Meetings & Travel  0.00 -212.00

1Page:

Agenda Packet  Page 35 of 171



11/08/2018
South Bay Regional PCA

2
 3:02PM

Page:expstat.rpt Expenditure Status Report

7/1/2018 through 10/31/2018
Periods: 0 through 4

SBRPCA Enterprise Fund10

Account Number
Adjusted 

Appropriation Expenditures
Year-to-date 
Expenditures

Year-to-date 
Encumbrances Balance

Prct 
Used

 2,000.00  28.46  28.46 1.4250-111-5404   Employee Services/EC-BOD  0.00  1,971.54
 4,000.00  0.00  0.00 0.0050-111-5407   Tuition Reimbursement  0.00  4,000.00
 9,000.00  2,581.76  2,581.76 28.6950-111-5501   Office Supplies  0.00  6,418.24
 1,100.00  0.00  0.00 0.0050-111-5502   Miscellaneous Supplies  0.00  1,100.00

 500.00  0.00  0.00 0.0050-111-5505   Voice Recording Tapes  0.00  500.00
 1,300.00  245.45  245.45 18.8850-111-5507   Postage  0.00  1,054.55
 2,000.00  0.00  0.00 0.0050-111-5509   Reproduction  0.00  2,000.00

 15,750.00  3,658.43  3,658.43 23.2350-111-5511   Office Equipment Lease  0.00  12,091.57
 187,660.00  133,006.04  133,006.04 70.8850-111-5513   General Liability Insurance Premium  0.00  54,653.96

 2,000.00  0.00  0.00 0.0050-111-5517   Vehicle Operations  0.00  2,000.00
 15,000.00  2,443.78  2,443.78 16.2950-111-5601   Telephone - Administration  0.00  12,556.22

 144,800.00  23,182.22  23,182.22 23.9250-111-5701   Maintenance - HQ  11,450.74  110,167.04
 97,000.00  29,190.74  29,190.74 30.0950-111-5703   Electricity - HQ  0.00  67,809.26

 2,000.00  342.82  342.82 17.1450-111-5704   Electricity - Grandview  0.00  1,657.18
 6,000.00  1,750.43  1,750.43 29.1750-111-5705   Electricity - Punta Place  0.00  4,249.57

 10,000.00  0.00  0.00 0.0050-111-5706   Gas - HQ  0.00  10,000.00
 3,500.00  1,154.66  1,154.66 32.9950-111-5707   Water - HQ  0.00  2,345.34
 2,500.00  772.57  772.57 30.9050-111-5715   Electricity-MB Water Tower  0.00  1,727.43

Total Administration  2,286,492.00  626,569.77  626,569.77  139,700.74  1,520,221.49  33.51

60                  Operations

60-200          Operations

60-200-5000   Expenditures

 4,794,562.00  1,236,596.72  1,236,596.72 25.7960-211-5101   Salaries (Full-Time)  0.00  3,557,965.28
 74,203.00  29,341.94  29,341.94 39.5460-211-5102   Salaries (Part-Time)  0.00  44,861.06

 350,000.00  325,698.63  325,698.63 93.0660-211-5103   Overtime  0.00  24,301.37
 4,815.00  236.83  236.83 4.9260-211-5104   Acting Pay  0.00  4,578.17
 8,667.00  2,100.00  2,100.00 24.2360-211-5105   Bilingual Pay  0.00  6,567.00

 107,419.00  0.00  0.00 0.0060-211-5108   Sick Leave Payoff  0.00  107,419.00
 46,052.00  5,309.49  5,309.49 11.5360-211-5109   Vacation Leave Payoff  0.00  40,742.51

 5,613.00  3,945.45  3,945.45 70.2960-211-5110   Training Pay  0.00  1,667.55
 74,917.00  27,536.51  27,536.51 36.7660-211-5114   Holiday Payoff  0.00  47,380.49

2Page:

Agenda Packet  Page 36 of 171



11/08/2018
South Bay Regional PCA

3
 3:02PM

Page:expstat.rpt Expenditure Status Report

7/1/2018 through 10/31/2018
Periods: 0 through 4

SBRPCA Enterprise Fund10

Account Number
Adjusted 

Appropriation Expenditures
Year-to-date 
Expenditures

Year-to-date 
Encumbrances Balance

Prct 
Used

 93,000.00  29,801.34  29,801.34 32.0460-211-5115   Education Incentive Pay  0.00  63,198.66
 10,000.00  0.00  0.00 0.0060-211-5116   Overtime - Ridealongs with Member Cities  0.00  10,000.00

 561,918.00  147,063.43  147,063.43 26.1760-211-5201   Medical Insurance  0.00  414,854.57
 53,464.00  7,438.73  7,438.73 13.9160-211-5202   Dental Insurance  0.00  46,025.27
 17,804.00  4,069.70  4,069.70 22.8660-211-5203   Vision Insurance  0.00  13,734.30

 7,870.00  2,138.73  2,138.73 27.1860-211-5204   Life Insurance  0.00  5,731.27
 83,217.00  24,367.56  24,367.56 29.2860-211-5205   Medicare  0.00  58,849.44

 6,713.00  0.00  0.00 0.0060-211-5206   Unemployment Insurance  0.00  6,713.00
 65,902.00  14,869.63  14,869.63 22.5660-211-5207   Workers' Compensation  0.00  51,032.37

 798,175.00  214,548.71  214,548.71 26.8860-211-5208   PERS Contributions  0.00  583,626.29
 57,091.00  16,035.16  16,035.16 28.0960-211-5209   Retirees' Medical Insurance  0.00  41,055.84

 890.00  33.64  33.64 3.7860-211-5211   Social Security  0.00  856.36
 0.00  159.98  159.98 0.0060-211-5300   Maintenance & Operations  0.00 -159.98

 750.00  29.21  29.21 3.8960-211-5401   Memberships & Dues  0.00  720.79
 1,710.00  409.00  409.00 23.9260-211-5402   Publications  0.00  1,301.00

 33,262.00  3,739.95  3,739.95 26.2860-211-5403   Conferences, Meetings & Travel  5,000.00  24,522.05
 2,500.00  0.00  0.00 0.0060-211-5404   Employee Services/EC-BOD  0.00  2,500.00

 500.00  0.00  0.00 0.0060-211-5405   Employee Awards  0.00  500.00
 2,000.00  0.00  0.00 0.0060-211-5406   POST Training  0.00  2,000.00

 18,000.00  607.50  607.50 3.3860-211-5407   Tuition Reimbursement  0.00  17,392.50
 8,000.00  4,696.71  4,696.71 58.7160-211-5506   Uniforms/Safety Equipment  0.00  3,303.29

 500.00  0.00  0.00 0.0060-211-5509   Reproduction  0.00  500.00
 3,000.00  389.45  389.45 12.9860-211-5603   Telephone - El Segundo  0.00  2,610.55
 5,000.00  224.90  224.90 4.5060-211-5604   Telephone - Gardena  0.00  4,775.10
 6,000.00  1,506.20  1,506.20 25.1060-211-5606   Telephone - Hawthorne  0.00  4,493.80

 25,000.00  7,707.21  7,707.21 30.8360-211-5607   Telephone - Hermosa Beach  0.00  17,292.79
 8,000.00  1,197.12  1,197.12 14.9660-211-5608   Telephone - Manhattan Beach  0.00  6,802.88
 5,500.00  1,264.84  1,264.84 23.0060-211-5611   Telephone - Punta Place  0.00  4,235.16

 12,000.00  1,982.63  1,982.63 16.5260-211-5612   Telephone - RCC  0.00  10,017.37
 77,289.00  19,323.21  19,323.21 25.0060-211-5613   Sprint Wireless Reimbursable  0.00  57,965.79
 15,229.00  5,381.21  5,381.21 35.3460-211-5614   Verizon Wireless Reimbursable  0.00  9,847.79

 5,500.00  2,858.08  2,858.08 51.9760-211-5615   Telephone - Culver City  0.00  2,641.92
 0.00  4,749.30  4,749.30 0.0060-211-5820   Other Equipment  0.00 -4,749.30

Total Operations  7,452,032.00  2,147,358.70  2,147,358.70  5,000.00  5,299,673.30  28.88

3Page:

Agenda Packet  Page 37 of 171



11/08/2018
South Bay Regional PCA

4
 3:02PM

Page:expstat.rpt Expenditure Status Report

7/1/2018 through 10/31/2018
Periods: 0 through 4

SBRPCA Enterprise Fund10

Account Number
Adjusted 

Appropriation Expenditures
Year-to-date 
Expenditures

Year-to-date 
Encumbrances Balance

Prct 
Used

70                  Technical Services

70-300          Technical Services

70-300-5000   Expenditures

 712,258.00  129,547.12  129,547.12 18.1970-311-5101   Salaries (Full-Time)  0.00  582,710.88
 10,000.00  765.96  765.96 7.6670-311-5103   Overtime  0.00  9,234.04

 1,400.00  511.50  511.50 36.5470-311-5107   Merit Pay  0.00  888.50
 15,635.00  0.00  0.00 0.0070-311-5108   Sick Leave Payoff  0.00  15,635.00
 13,382.00  0.00  0.00 0.0070-311-5109   Vacation Leave Payoff  0.00  13,382.00
 12,580.00  0.00  0.00 0.0070-311-5114   Holiday Payoff  0.00  12,580.00

 3,733.00  0.00  0.00 0.0070-311-5115   Education Incentive Pay  0.00  3,733.00
 69,141.00  15,949.18  15,949.18 23.0770-311-5201   Medical Insurance  0.00  53,191.82

 4,569.00  649.79  649.79 14.2270-311-5202   Dental Insurance  0.00  3,919.21
 1,305.00  356.65  356.65 27.3370-311-5203   Vision Insurance  0.00  948.35

 950.00  216.15  216.15 22.7570-311-5204   Life Insurance  0.00  733.85
 11,027.00  1,993.35  1,993.35 18.0870-311-5205   Medicare  0.00  9,033.65
 94,760.00  26,327.99  26,327.99 27.7870-311-5207   Workers' Compensation  0.00  68,432.01
 82,649.00  20,186.86  20,186.86 24.4270-311-5208   PERS Contributions  0.00  62,462.14
 31,214.00  10,092.54  10,092.54 32.3370-311-5209   Retirees' Medical Insurance  0.00  21,121.46

 145,000.00  0.00  0.00 0.0070-311-5302   Computer Contract Services/CAD-Tiburon  0.00  145,000.00
 50,000.00  44,790.88  44,790.88 89.5870-311-5311   GST Software Reimbursable  0.00  5,209.12

 2,650.00  0.00  0.00 0.0070-311-5403   Conferences, Meetings & Travel  0.00  2,650.00
 7,500.00  0.00  0.00 0.0070-311-5503   General Technical Supplies  0.00  7,500.00
 2,000.00  5,434.14  5,434.14 271.7170-311-5506   Uniforms/Safety Equipment  0.00 -3,434.14

 642,397.00  149,193.82  149,193.82 23.2270-311-5514   Parts - Billing  0.00  493,203.18
 15,357.00  149.73  149.73 0.9770-311-5515   Parts - Telecommunications  0.00  15,207.27
 25,132.00  8,442.50  8,442.50 33.5970-311-5516   Install Wire, Loom & Hardware  0.00  16,689.50

 4,500.00  943.09  943.09 20.9670-311-5517   Vehicle Operations  0.00  3,556.91
 10,000.00  232.29  232.29 2.3270-311-5520   Equipment Repair  0.00  9,767.71

 331,000.00  50,000.00  50,000.00 15.1170-311-5521   Outside Technical Serv-Towers & Equip  0.00  281,000.00
 1,733,647.00  0.00  0.00 0.0070-311-5820   Other Equipment  0.00  1,733,647.00

Total Technical Services  4,033,786.00  465,783.54  465,783.54  0.00  3,568,002.46  11.55

4Page:

Agenda Packet  Page 38 of 171



11/08/2018
South Bay Regional PCA

5
 3:02PM

Page:expstat.rpt Expenditure Status Report

7/1/2018 through 10/31/2018
Periods: 0 through 4

SBRPCA Enterprise Fund10

Account Number
Adjusted 

Appropriation Expenditures
Year-to-date 
Expenditures

Year-to-date 
Encumbrances Balance

Prct 
Used

80                  Capital Infrastructure Projects

80-400          CIP

80-400-5000   Expenditures

 17,500.00  0.00  0.00 0.0080-447-5901   CIP Expenditures-Replace Cisco Switches  0.00  17,500.00
 0.00  350.00  350.00 0.0080-449-5901   Backup Stand Alone Radio System-Comm Ctr  0.00 -350.00

Total Expenditures  17,500.00  350.00  350.00  0.00  17,150.00  2.00

Total CIP  17,500.00  350.00  350.00  0.00  17,150.00  2.00

Total Capital Infrastructure Projects  17,500.00  350.00  350.00  0.00  17,150.00  2.00

Total SBRPCA Enterprise Fund  13,789,810.00  3,240,062.01  3,240,062.01  144,700.74  10,405,047.25  24.55

5Page:

Agenda Packet  Page 39 of 171



11/08/2018
South Bay Regional PCA

6
 3:02PM

Page:expstat.rpt Expenditure Status Report

7/1/2018 through 10/31/2018
Periods: 0 through 4

Grant Fund20

Account Number
Adjusted 

Appropriation Expenditures
Year-to-date 
Expenditures

Year-to-date 
Encumbrances Balance

Prct 
Used

80                  Capital Infrastructure Projects

80-400          CIP

80-400-5000   Expenditures

Total Grant Fund  0.00  0.00  0.00  0.00  0.00  0.00

Grand Total  13,789,810.00  3,240,062.01  3,240,062.01 24.55 144,700.74  10,405,047.25

6Page:

Agenda Packet  Page 40 of 171



Agenda Packet  Page 41 of 171



Agenda Packet  Page 42 of 171



Page 1 of 2 

Staff Report 
South Bay Regional Public Communications 

Authority 

MEETING DATE: November 20, 2018 

ITEM: C6 

TO: Executive Committee 

FROM: John Krok, Administrative Services Manager 

SUBJECT: APPROVE A CHANGE PURCHASE ORDER IN THE AMOUNT 
OF $85,000 TO LEHR AUTO CORPORATION FOR SUPPLIES 
AND EQUIPMENT  

ATTACHMENT: None 

RECOMMENDATION  
Staff recommends that the Executive Committee approve a change purchase order in 
the amount of $85,000 to Lehr Auto Corporation for supplies and equipment.  

BACKGROUND 
As reported to the Executive Committee on June 19, 2018, staff plans to issue FY 
2018/19 blanket purchase orders (BPOs) to vendors that provide goods and services to 
the Authority throughout the fiscal year on an as-needed basis.  Staff already issued a 
BPO to this vendor in the amount of $15,000 earlier this fiscal year.  Because the year 
end costs associated with purchases from this vendor are anticipated to exceed 
$15,000, approval of the Executive Committee for this change purchase order is 
required, per Resolution 316 adopted on August 21, 2018.   

DISCUSSION 
Lehr Auto Corporation was founded in 1945 as an auto electric repair facility. In the late 
1980’s Lehr Auto expanded its product line with emergency vehicle equipment. 
As one of California’s largest suppliers of this equipment, they warehouse thousands of 
products to expedite the shipment of items.   

Agenda Packet  Page 43 of 171



Page 2 of 2 

The Authority routinely orders computers, computer mounts, controllers and other 
related accessories from Lehr Auto for the installation work performed by the Technical 
Services Division. The proposed BPO will provide staff with the ability to order supplies 
and equipment in a timely and efficient manner, cutting down on both lead and build 
time.  Lehr Auto offers the Authority a discounted price as compared to their competitors. 
These discounts are passed along to owner and contract cities alike.  For example, the 
Authority routinely orders Panasonic CF-33DP-00KM computers for installation in public 
safety vehicles.  The cost comparison for this item with available vendors is as follows: 
 
 

Panasonic Factory Outlet $3,449.95 
Tough Rugged Laptops Inc.   $3,265.98 
Lehr Auto Corporation $2,842.39 

 
The Authority also purchases Police Interceptor Utility On-Dash Mounts for installation in 
public safety vehicles.   The cost comparison for this item with available vendors is as 
follows: 
 
 Grand & Toy   $462.23 
 Gamber-Johnson  $361.00 
 Lehr Auto Corporation $300.00 
 
Based on the competitive pricing received from the vendor on a variety of supplies and 
equipment, coupled with its ability to supply these goods in a timely manner, staff 
recommends the approval of a BPO in the amount of $100,000 for the remainder of the 
fiscal year. 
 

FISCAL IMPACT  
The above requested change purchase order would bring the total BPO amount to 
$100,000.  Funds for this purchase are included in the Fiscal Year 2018/19 Adopted 
Budget.  Additionally, all costs associated with the upfitting of vehicles are 100% 
reimbursable by the member or contract agencies requesting the service. 

 

 

Agenda Packet  Page 44 of 171



Page 1 of 2 

Staff Report 
South Bay Regional Public Communications 

Authority 

MEETING DATE: November 20, 2018 

ITEM: C7 

TO: Executive Committee 

FROM: John Krok, Administrative Services Manager 

SUBJECT: APPROVE A FISCAL YEAR 2018/19 BLANKET PURCHASE 
ORDER TO CDW CORPORATION FOR SUPPLIES AND 
EQUIPMENT IN A TOTAL AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $100,000  

ATTACHMENT: None 

RECOMMENDATION 
Staff recommends that the Executive Committee approve a Fiscal Year 2018/19 blanket 
purchase order to CDW Corporation for supplies and equipment in a total amount not to 
exceed $100,000.  

BACKGROUND 
As reported to the Executive Committee on June 19, 2018, staff plans to issue FY 
2018/19 blanket purchase orders (BPOs) to vendors that provide goods and services to 
the Authority throughout the fiscal year on an as-needed basis.  The costs associated 
with this proposed purchase from the vendor exceed $15,000 and therefore require 
approval of the Executive Committee, per Resolution 316 adopted on August 21, 2018.   

DISCUSSION 
CDW Corporation was founded in 1984 and remains a leader in providing technology 
products and services for business, government and education.  The company has a 
secondary division known a CDW-G, devoted solely to United States government 
entities, including Local, State and the Federal government.   

Agenda Packet  Page 45 of 171



Page 2 of 2 

The Authority routinely orders computers, modems, cables and other related 
accessories from CDW for the installation work performed by the Technical Services 
Division. The proposed BPO will provide staff with the ability to order supplies and 
equipment in a timely and efficient manner, cutting down on both lead and build time. 
CDW offers the Authority a discounted price as compared to their competitors. These 
discounts are passed along to owner and contract cities alike.  For example, the 
Authority routinely orders GETAC F110 G3 computers for installation in public safety 
vehicles.  The cost comparison for this item with available vendors is as follows: 
 

COMMline Inc.   $2,932.50 
Tough Rugged Laptops Inc.   $2,349.00 
CDW Corporation  $2,339.00 

 
 
The Authority also purchases Cradlepoint Mobile Routers for installation in public safety 
vehicles.   The cost comparison for this item with available vendors is as follows: 
 
 Cradlepoint   $1,547.86 
 Barcodes   $1,379.00 
 CDW Corporation  $1,025.00 
 
 
Based on the competitive pricing received from the vendor on a variety of supplies and 
equipment, coupled with its ability to supply these goods in a timely manner, staff 
recommends the approval of a BPO in the amount of $100,000 for the remainder of the 
fiscal year. 
 

FISCAL IMPACT  
Funds for the above requested BPO, which total $100,000, are included in the Fiscal 
Year 2018/19 Adopted Budget.  Additionally, all costs associated with the upfitting of 
vehicles are 100% reimbursable by the member or contract agencies requesting the 
service. 

 

 

Agenda Packet  Page 46 of 171



Page 1 of 3 

 
 

        Staff Report 
South Bay Regional Public Communications 

Authority 
 
MEETING DATE: November 20, 2018 
 
ITEM NUMBER: C8 
 
TO:   Executive Committee 
 
FROM:  Erick B. Lee, Executive Director  
 
SUBJECT:  Update on FirstNet in Los Angeles County 
 
ATTACHMENTS: None 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
None.  This report is provided for information only. 
 
 
BACKGROUND 
FirstNet is an independent authority within the U.S. Department of Commerce. 
Authorized by Congress in 2012, its mission is to develop, build and operate the 
nationwide, broadband network that equips first responders to save lives and 
protect U.S. communities. 
 
FirstNet is the only nationwide public safety communications platform dedicated 
to America’s first responders. Being built with AT&T, in public-private partnership 
with the First Responder Network Authority, FirstNet is bringing public safety 
agencies technology to help them connect to the critical information they need—
every day and in every emergency. According to FirstNet, five key capabilities 
that first responders will find most useful in their efforts to perform their jobs by 
using the network are: 
 

Asset Tracking & Location Services  
It’s challenging to track responders in the field. With access to the latest 
wireless location technologies and an “always on” connection, FirstNet 

Agenda Packet  Page 47 of 171



Page 2 of 3 

helps public safety agencies dispatch and track personnel, tools, and 
resources in real time–improving responder safety and enabling more 
efficient response.  
 
Priority & Preemption  
During an incident, commercial networks are often flooded with 
commercial traffic that can hamper emergency response and result in slow 
connections and failed calls. As a dedicated first responder network, 
FirstNet pushes public safety communications to the front, ensuring 
responders can communicate every day and in every emergency.  
 
Push-to-Talk  
FirstNet devices support push-to-talk capabilities that enhance emergency 
communications. Subscribers can create and manage one-on-one or 
multiple talk groups and channels for specific personnel. The network is 
built to carry high-speed data, including images and video, which can be 
shared through these talk groups, resulting in faster and more coordinated 
response.  
 
Customer Care & Advocacy  
Public safety must respond 24/7/365–and so does FirstNet. Trained 
representatives are available to public safety subscribers at all times to 
provide technical, billing, or service support. The FirstNet Authority also 
engages with first responders to advocate for their network needs and 
enhancements.  
 
Secure Data Sharing  
When sharing mission-critical or sensitive data, security is paramount. 
FirstNet is built with end-to-end encryption; offers identification and 
credentialing solutions; and provides 24/7/365 monitoring through a 
dedicated Security Operation Center that protects critical data, 
applications, and services running over the network.  

 
As part of the Authority’s FY2018/19 work plans, the Executive Committee 
requested staff to monitor FirstNet’s implementation in the South Bay.  This 
report provides the first of said updates for the Authority’s member and contract 
cities. 
 
 
DISCUSSION 
On November 8, 2018, the Interagency Communications Interoperability System 
(ICI-System) hosted a meeting of public safety professionals in the City of 
Glendale’s Council Chambers to discuss FirstNet’s progress in Southern 
California Los Angeles County.   During this meeting Kevin Nida, FirstNet’s 
Senior Public Safety Advisor for California, presented an update on the agency’s 
Band 14 installations throughout Los Angeles County.  Additionally, attendees 
were able to view confidential and proprietary FirstNet coverage maps for the 
region which, at face value, appear very promising for the South Bay region. 
 

Agenda Packet  Page 48 of 171



Page 3 of 3 

Overall, FirstNet claims to have made significant strides over the past two years 
in deploying the Public Safety Broadband Network (PBSN).  Mr. Nida advised 
that network coverage will be “good” in the Los Angeles County region by March 
2019 and “optimized” by March 2020.  Mr. Nida further advised that the federal 
government has guaranteed that the network will operate for a minimum of 25 
years. 
 
Access to the system is anticipated to cost $37 per month, per device.  This fee 
would provide for unlimited data with no throttling up to 22GB.  After 22GB, the 
device owner would be contacted by FirstNet to determine the need for additional 
data.  When asked about potential discount programs for agencies that have 
allowed for LA-RICS and FirstNet installations at their facilities, Mr. Nida did not 
advise that such discounts would be available. 
 
Staff will continue to monitor FirstNet’s deployment of sites in the South Bay and 
will report back to the Executive Committee and User Committees as appropriate 
and when additional information becomes available. 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
None.  

Agenda Packet  Page 49 of 171



Page 1 of 2 

       
 

  Staff Report 
South Bay Regional Public Communications 

Authority 
 
MEETING DATE: November 20, 2018 
 
ITEM:   E1 
 
TO:   User Committee     
 
FROM:  Erick B. Lee, Executive Director   
 
SUBJECT: ELECTION OF USER COMMITTEE CHAIR FOR THE 

REMAINDER OF FISCAL YEAR 2018/2019 
 
ATTACHMENTS: None 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
Staff recommends that the User Committee elect from among themselves a new Chair, 
and Vice Chair if appropriate, for the remainder of FY2018/19. 
 

   
DISCUSSION 
With the recent retirement of Hawthorne’s Chief of Police Robert Fager, the office of Chair 
of the User Committee is now vacant. 
 
The Authority’s Bylaws provide for the establishment of User Committee Officers as 
follows: 
 

1. The User Committee shall elect, from among the membership of the official 
representatives of said Committee, a chair and vice chair. The vice chair shall not 
be a member of the same member agency or public safety service as the chair of 
such Committee. 
 

2. Officers of the User Committee shall be elected at the first meeting of the 
Committee and at the first regular meeting on or after July 1 of each year thereafter. 
Said election shall be the first item of business at said meetings and the newly 
elected officers shall assume office immediately following their election. 
 

Agenda Packet  Page 50 of 171



2 of 2 

3. A vacancy shall immediately occur in the office of any officer upon the resignation, 
death of disability of the person holding such office, or in the event that an officer 
ceases to be an official representative of a member agency. The Committee shall 
fill such vacancy in accordance with the provisions of these Bylaws. 

4. The chair shall preside at all meetings of the User Committee. The vice chair shall 
act as chair in the absence of the chair. In the absence of both officers, those 
members present shall elect a temporary chair to serve at that meeting. Said 
temporary chair shall have all the duties and responsibilities of the chair. 
 

5. A recording secretary shall be appointed by the chair and shall keep a record of all 
proceedings of the User Committee. 
 

Staff recommends that a new Chair be elected from the membership of the User 
Committee to serve for the remainder of FY2018/19.  Current members of the User 
Committee are: 
 

Chief of Police, Gardena:          Thomas Kang 
Chief of Police, Hawthorne:           Michael Ishii 
Chief of Police/Interim Fire Chief, Manhattan Beach: Derrick Abell 

 
Chief Abell is currently the Vice Chair of the User Committee.  Should he be elected to 
serve as Chair, a new Vice Chair would also need to be elected. 

 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
None. 

Agenda Packet  Page 51 of 171



Page 1 of 2 

       
 

  Staff Report 
South Bay Regional Public Communications 

Authority 
 
MEETING DATE: November 20, 2018 
 
ITEM:   E2 
 
TO:   Executive Committee 
 
FROM:  Erick B. Lee, Executive Director   
 
SUBJECT: CARRY OVER OF THE REMAINING BALANCE OF A PURCHASE 

ORDER ISSUED TO MOTOROLA SOLUTIONS, INC. IN THE 
AMOUNT OF $1,602,068.60 RELATED TO THE UASI 2016 
GRANT AND INTEROPERABILITY NETWORK OF THE SOUTH 
BAY PROJECT FROM FISCAL YEAR 2017/2018 TO 2018/2019 

 
ATTACHMENTS: None 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
Staff recommends that the Executive Committee approve the carry over of the remaining 
balance of a purchase order issued to Motorola Solutions, Inc. (“Motorola”) in the amount 
of $1,602,068.60 related to the UASI 2016 grant and Interoperability Network of the South 
Bay (“INSB”) Project from Fiscal Year 2017/2018 to 2018/2019. 
 

   
DISCUSSION 
The Authority was awarded a $5,000,000 grant under the 2016 Urban Area Security 
Initiative (UASI) for the Los Angeles/Long Beach operational area to implement the INSB 
network.  The purpose of this grant is to upgrade and migrate six repeater sites to digital 
trunking and interface the system with other regional public safety partners. 
 
In September 2017, the Authority entered into an agreement with Motorola for services, 
equipment, and software necessary to develop the INSB network and issued the vendor 
a purchase order in the amount of $4,458,356.  Due to the change in scope of this project 
associated with moving the location of the sixth site in the City of El Segundo, additional 
costs were incurred and the Executive Committee authorized a change order in the 
amount of $41,644 on May 30, 2018.  This brought the total value of the vendor’s work to 
$4,500,000.   

Agenda Packet  Page 52 of 171



Page 2 of 2 

 
As of June 30, 2018, a total of $2,897,931.40 had been expended from this purchase 
order.  The remaining amount of $1,602,068.60 needs to be carried over from FY2017/18 
to FY2018/19 to fund the expenses associated with the remainder of this project.   
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
A carry over in the amount of $1,602,068.60 for Purchase Order #00041/701203804 is 
necessary to complete this project. 

Agenda Packet  Page 53 of 171



Page 1 of 5 

       
 

  Staff Report 
South Bay Regional Public Communications 

Authority 
 
MEETING DATE: November 20, 2018 
 
ITEM:   E3 
 
TO:   Executive Committee     
 
FROM:  Erick B. Lee, Executive Director   
 
SUBJECT: APPROPRIATION OF $4,773,979.70 IN REIMBURSEMENTS 

RELATED TO THE COMMUNICATION EQUIPMENT PURCHASE 
AND REIMBURSEMENT AGREEMENTS WITH MEMBER AND 
CONTRACT CITIES AND AUTHORIZATION OF THESE FUNDS 
TO BE USED TO EXERCISE THE PURCHASE OPTION UNDER 
THE EQUIPMENT LEASE-PURCHASE AGREEMENT WITH 
MOTOROLA SOLUTIONS, INC.; AND 

 
APPROPRIATION OF $37,059.88 FROM THE ENTERPRISE 
FUND UNRESERVED BALANCE AND AUTHORIZATION OF 
THESE FUNDS TO BE USED TO EXERCISE THE PURCHASE 
OPTION UNDER THE EQUIPMENT LEASE-PURCHASE 
AGREEMENT WITH MOTOROLA SOLUTIONS, INC.; AND  

 
 APPROVAL TO EXERCISE THE PURCHASE OPTION UNDER 

THE EQUIPMENT LEASE-PURCHASE AGREEMENT WITH 
MOTOROLA SOLUTIONS, INC. AND AUTHORIZE THE 
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR TO PROVIDE THE 30 DAY NOTICE 
REQUIRED TO PURCHASE ALL OF THE EQUIPMENT 
ASSOCIATED WITH THE AGREEMENT; AND 

 
 AUTHORIZATION FOR EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR TO ISSUE 

PAYMENT TO MOTOROLA SOLUTIONS, INC IN THE AMOUNT 
OF $6,544,686.58; AND 

 
 AUTHORIZATION FOR THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR TO 

NEGOTIATE AND EXECUTE AMENDMENTS TO THE 
COMMUNICATION EQUIPMENT PURCHASE AND 
REIMBURSEMENT AGREEMENTS WITH MEMBER AND 
CONTRACT CITIES TO RECONCILE THE CONSIDERATION 

Agenda Packet  Page 54 of 171



Page 2 of 5 

AMOUNTS WITH THE ACTUAL ORDERS PLACED AND COSTS 
INCURRED FOR THIS PROJECT 

 
ATTACHMENTS: 1.  Equipment Lease-Purchase Agreement  
   2.  Differences Between Agreements and Actual Cost by City 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
Staff recommends that the Executive Committee: 
 

1. Appropriate $4,773,979.70 in reimbursements related to the Communication 
Equipment Purchase and Reimbursement Agreements with member and contract 
cities as indicated below and authorize these funds to be used to exercise the 
purchase option under the Equipment Lease-Purchase Agreement with Motorola 
Solutions, Inc.: 
 

From     To 
Enterprise Fund   Technical Services/Other Equipment 
Fund 10 Unreserved Balance  Account # 10-70-311-5820  

 
2. Appropriate $37,059.88 from the Enterprise Fund unreserved balance as indicated 

below and authorize these funds to be used to exercise the purchase option under 
the Equipment Lease-Purchase Agreement with Motorola Solutions, Inc.: 

 

From     To 
Enterprise Fund   Technical Services/Other Equipment 
Fund 10 Unreserved Balance  Account # 10-70-311-5820  

 
3. Approve exercising the purchase option under the Equipment Lease-Purchase 

Agreement with Motorola Solutions, Inc. and authorize the Executive Director to 
provide the 30 day notice required to purchase all of the equipment associated 
with the Agreement. 

 
4. Authorize the Executive Director to issue payment to Motorola Solutions, Inc. in 

the amount of $6,544,686.58. 
 

5. Authorize the Executive Director to negotiate and execute amendments to the 
Communication Equipment Purchase and Reimbursement Agreements with 
member and contract cities to reconcile the consideration amounts with the actual 
orders placed and costs incurred for this project. 
 

 
DISCUSSION 
In 2017, the Authority entered into an agreement with Motorola Solutions, Inc. (“Motorola”) 
for the purchase of mobile and portable radios and accessories in the amount of 
$6,544,686.58 on behalf of its three (3) member cities and two (2) of its contract cities.  
These radios are necessary for these five (5) cities to operate on the Interoperability 
Network of the South Bay (INSB) radio network, which is under construction and 
anticipated to go-live in early 2019.  The agreement with Motorola provided the Authority 
with a 40% discount on the equipment with no up-front payments due and no interest 
financing, provided that the balance is paid by December 31, 2018 (Attachment #1).   
 

Agenda Packet  Page 55 of 171



Page 3 of 5 

Additionally, the Authority entered into Communication Equipment Purchase and 
Reimbursement agreements with the five (5) cities to supply the funding for each city’s 
share of the purchase. 
 
 
As of November 13, 2018, the following amounts have been received from the five (5) 
cities: 
 

CITY AMOUNTS RECEIVED 
GARDENA  $    984,273.42  
HAWTHORNE        740,893.41  
MANHATTAN BEACH   1,277,756.55  
EL SEGUNDO   1,154,740.05  
HERMOSA BEACH      616,316.27  
TOTAL  $ 4,773,979.70  

 
 
Additionally, on October 11, 2018, the Board of Directors appropriated $1,733,647.00 from 
the Enterprise Fund unreserved balance on behalf of the Authority’s three (3) Member 
Cities as follows: 
 

CITY AMOUNT APPROPRIATED 
GARDENA   $  556,154.00  
HAWTHORNE     781,355.00  
MANHATTAN BEACH     396,138.00  
TOTAL  $ 1,733,647.00  

 
 
When combined, the total amounts received in reimbursements from the five (5) cities and 
appropriated by the Board of Directors is as follows: 
 

CITY 
REIMBURSEMENTS 
PER AGREEMENTS 

APPROPRIATED 
ON 10/11/2018 TOTALS 

GARDENA $984,273.42  $556,154.00  $1,540,427.42  
HAWTHORNE 740,893.41  781,355.00  1,522,248.41  
MANHATTAN BEACH 1,277,756.55  396,138.00  1,673,894.55  
EL SEGUNDO 1,154,740.05  - 1,154,740.05  
HERMOSA BEACH 616,316.27  - $616,316.27  
TOTAL $4,773,979.70  $1,733,647.00  $6,507,626.70  

 
 
The total amount due to Motorola by December 31, 2018 to exercise the option purchase 
option without incurring any finance charges is $6,544,686.58.  The difference between 
the payoff amount and the reimbursements received under the agreements with the five 
(5) cities and the previous appropriation by the Board of Directors is $37,059.88.   
 

AMOUNT DUE TO MOTOROLA   $6,544,686.58 
REIMBURSEMENTS AGREEMENTS  (4,773,979.70) 
APPROPRIATION FROM 10/11/2018  (1,733,647.00)  

Agenda Packet  Page 56 of 171



Page 4 of 5 

REMAINING APPROPRIATION NEEDED  $37,059.88  
 
 
The reason for this difference is that the Communication Equipment Purchase and 
Reimbursement Agreements with the five (5) cities did not exactly match the equipment 
order that was placed with Motorola and the additional costs associated with the services 
performed by Commline Inc. to ready the equipment on the network.  The details regarding 
the differences between the agreement amounts and the actual costs incurred by each 
city are included as Attachment #2 and summarized as follows: 
 
 

CITY 
 AGREEMENT 

AMOUNTS  

ACTUAL COSTS INCURRED  DIFFERENCE 
BETWEEN 

AGREEMENTS 
& ACTUALS  MOTOROLA COMMLINE TOTAL  

GARDENA  $ 1,540,427.42  $1,497,294.56 $26,820.00 $1,524,114.56   $  16,312.86  

HAWTHORNE  $ 1,522,248.41  $1,540,737.94 $27,800.00 $1,568,537.94    (46,289.53) 

MANHATTAN 
BEACH  $ 1,673,894.55  $1,647,843.61 $30,440.00 $1,678,283.61      (4,389.06) 

EL SEGUNDO  $ 1,154,740.05  $1,128,344.05 $18,240.00 $1,146,584.05       8,156.00  

HERMOSA 
BEACH  $    616,316.27  $616,017.77 $11,350.00 $627,367.77    (11,051.50) 

SBRPCA $115,846.761 $114,451.76 $1,395.00 $115,846.76  - 

TOTAL $ 6,623,473.46  $6,544,689.692 $116,045.00 $6,660,734.69  $ (37,261.23) 
 
 
In order to issue payment in full to Motorola, an additional appropriation from the 
Enterprise Fund Unreserved Balance in the amount of $37,059.88 is necessary.  This 
amount will be offset by the $37,261.23 that will be recovered as the Authority pursues 
amendments to the Communication Equipment Purchase and Reimbursement 
Agreements with each of the five (5) cities to true-up their actual costs incurred by this 
project.   
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
Appropriations totaling $4,811,039.58 are necessary to issue payment in full to Motorola 
and complete this purchase. 
 

Funds available & received under reimbursement agreements: $4,773,979.70 
 Enterprise Fund Unreserved Balance:           37,059.88 
 Total:         $4,811,039.58 
 

                                                
1 This portion of the purchase is for radios that will be operated by Authority. 
2 This amount differs from the actual amount that is owed to Motorola by $3.11 due to rounding issues. 

Agenda Packet  Page 57 of 171



Page 5 of 5 

The Authority has already received reimbursements for this project totaling $4,773,979.70.  
Recovery of the remaining amount of $37,059.88 will be pursued under amendments to 
the Communication Equipment Purchase and Reimbursement Agreements with each of 
the five (5) cities. 

Agenda Packet  Page 58 of 171



ATTACHMENT #1 

Agenda Item E3 

Agenda Packet  Page 59 of 171



Agenda Packet  Page 60 of 171



Agenda Packet  Page 61 of 171



Agenda Packet  Page 62 of 171



Agenda Packet  Page 63 of 171



Agenda Packet  Page 64 of 171



Agenda Packet  Page 65 of 171



Agenda Packet  Page 66 of 171



Agenda Packet  Page 67 of 171



Agenda Packet  Page 68 of 171



Agenda Packet  Page 69 of 171



Agenda Packet  Page 70 of 171



Agenda Packet  Page 71 of 171



Agenda Packet  Page 72 of 171



Agenda Packet  Page 73 of 171



Agenda Packet  Page 74 of 171



Agenda Packet  Page 75 of 171



Agenda Packet  Page 76 of 171



Agenda Packet  Page 77 of 171



Agenda Packet  Page 78 of 171



Agenda Packet  Page 79 of 171



Agenda Packet  Page 80 of 171



Agenda Packet  Page 81 of 171



Agenda Packet  Page 82 of 171



Agenda Packet  Page 83 of 171



Agenda Packet  Page 84 of 171



Agenda Packet  Page 85 of 171



Agenda Packet  Page 86 of 171



Agenda Packet  Page 87 of 171



Agenda Packet  Page 88 of 171



Agenda Packet  Page 89 of 171



Agenda Packet  Page 90 of 171



Agenda Packet  Page 91 of 171



Agenda Packet  Page 92 of 171



Agenda Packet  Page 93 of 171



Agenda Packet  Page 94 of 171



Agenda Packet  Page 95 of 171



Agenda Packet  Page 96 of 171



Agenda Packet  Page 97 of 171



ATTACHMENT #2 

Agenda Item E3 

Agenda Packet  Page 98 of 171



Differences Between Agreements and Actual Cost by City

CITY OF GARDENA
ITEMS AGREEMENT ACTUAL DIFFERENCE
EXTEND SUBSCRIBER WITH 37% DISCOUNT 1,473,695.87$ 1,343,514.61$ 130,181.26$  

ACCESSORIES WITH 30% DISCOUNT 62,472.43         74,105.22         (11,632.79)     

Q4 ADDITIONAL 3% DISCOUNT (44,210.88)        (40,305.44)        (3,905.44)        

APPORTIONED CREDIT (18,813.83)        18,813.83       

SUBTOTAL 1,491,957.42   1,358,500.56   133,456.86    
RADIO MANAGEMENT SOFTWARE 29,700.00         30,400.00         (700.00)           

EXTENDED WARRANTY (SFS COMP) -                      108,394.00       (108,394.00)   

MOTOROLA TOTAL 1,521,657.42$ 1,497,294.56$ 24,362.86$    

PROGRAMMING OF RADIOS 14,850.00$       15,200.00$       (350.00)$         

ENGRAVING OF RADIOS 3,920.00           4,020.00           (100.00)           

RADIO MANAGEMENT INTEGRATION 7,600.00           (7,600.00)        

COMMLINE TOTAL 18,770.00$       26,820.00$       (8,050.00)$     

GRAND TOTAL 1,540,427.42$ 1,524,114.56$ 16,312.86$    

CITY OF HAWTHORNE
ITEMS AGREEMENT ACTUAL DIFFERENCE
EXTEND SUBSCRIBER WITH 37% DISCOUNT 1,528,445.63$ 1,393,222.44$ 135,223.19$  

ACCESSORIES WITH 30% DISCOUNT 19,956.15         65,579.25         (45,623.10)     

Q4 ADDITIONAL 3% DISCOUNT (45,853.37)        (41,796.67)        (4,056.70)        

APPORTIONED CREDIT -                      (22,089.07)        22,089.07       

SUBTOTAL 1,502,548.41   1,394,915.94   107,632.47    
RADIO MANAGEMENT SOFTWARE -                      32,400.00         (32,400.00)     

EXTENDED WARRANTY (SFS COMP) -                      113,422.00       (113,422.00)   

MOTOROLA TOTAL 1,502,548.41$ 1,540,737.94$ (38,189.53)$   

PROGRAMMING OF RADIOS 16,200.00$       16,200.00$       -$                 

ENGRAVING OF RADIOS 3,500.00           3,500.00           -                   

RADIO MANAGEMENT INTEGRATION -                      8,100.00           (8,100.00)        

COMMLINE TOTAL 19,700.00$       27,800.00$       (8,100.00)$     

GRAND TOTAL 1,522,248.41$ 1,568,537.94$ (46,289.53)$   

Page 1 of 3

Agenda Packet  Page 99 of 171



Differences Between Agreements and Actual Cost by City

CITY OF MANHATTAN BEACH
ITEMS AGREEMENT ACTUAL DIFFERENCE
EXTEND SUBSCRIBER WITH 37% DISCOUNT 1,596,227.53$ 1,395,572.07$ 200,655.46$  

ACCESSORIES WITH 30% DISCOUNT 81,291.34         161,720.19       (80,428.85)     

Q4 ADDITIONAL 3% DISCOUNT (47,886.83)        (41,867.16)        (6,019.67)        

APPORTIONED CREDIT (12,577.49)        (12,577.49)        (0.00)                

SUBTOTAL 1,617,054.55$ 1,502,847.61$ 114,206.94$  
RADIO MANAGEMENT SOFTWARE 35,200.00         35,200.00         -                   

EXTENDED WARRANTY (SFS COMP) 109,796.00       (109,796.00)   

MOTOROLA TOTAL 1,652,254.55$ 1,647,843.61$ 4,410.94$       

PROGRAMMING OF RADIOS 17,600.00$       17,600.00$       -$                 

ENGRAVING OF RADIOS 4,040.00           4,040.00           -                   

RADIO MANAGEMENT INTEGRATION 8,800.00           (8,800.00)        

COMMLINE TOTAL 21,640.00$       30,440.00$       (8,800.00)$     

GRAND TOTAL 1,673,894.55$ 1,678,283.61$ (4,389.06)$     

CITY OF EL SEGUNDO
ITEMS AGREEMENT ACTUAL DIFFERENCE
EXTEND SUBSCRIBER WITH 37% DISCOUNT 1,106,592.52$ 998,286.07$    108,306.45$  

ACCESSORIES WITH 30% DISCOUNT 47,505.31         70,593.69         (23,088.38)     

Q4 ADDITIONAL 3% DISCOUNT (33,197.78)        (29,948.58)        (3,249.20)        

APPORTIONED CREDIT (9,311.14)          9,311.14         

SUBTOTAL 1,120,900.05   1,029,620.05   91,280.00       
RADIO MANAGEMENT SOFTWARE 20,800.00         20,800.00         -                   

EXTENDED WARRANTY (SFS COMP) 77,924.00         (77,924.00)     

MOTOROLA TOTAL 1,141,700.05$ 1,128,344.05$ 13,356.00$    

PROGRAMMING OF RADIOS 10,400.00$       10,400.00$       -$                 

ENGRAVING OF RADIOS 2,640.00           2,640.00           -                   

RADIO MANAGEMENT INTEGRATION 5,200.00           (5,200.00)        

COMMLINE TOTAL 13,040.00$       18,240.00$       (5,200.00)$     

GRAND TOTAL 1,154,740.05$ 1,146,584.05$ 8,156.00$       

Page 2 of 3

Agenda Packet  Page 100 of 171



Differences Between Agreements and Actual Cost by City

CITY OF HERMOSA BEACH
ITEMS AGREEMENT ACTUAL DIFFERENCE
EXTEND SUBSCRIBER WITH 37% DISCOUNT 592,823.44$    537,896.05$    54,927.39$    

ACCESSORIES WITH 30% DISCOUNT 33,177.53         45,793.39         (12,615.86)     

Q4 ADDITIONAL 3% DISCOUNT (17,784.70)        (16,136.88)        (1,647.82)        

APPORTIONED CREDIT -                      (7,248.79)          7,248.79         

SUBTOTAL 608,216.27$    560,303.77$    47,912.50$    
RADIO MANAGEMENT SOFTWARE -                      13,000.00         (13,000.00)     

EXTENDED WARRANTY (SFS COMP) -                      42,714.00         (42,714.00)     

MOTOROLA TOTAL 608,216.27$    616,017.77$    (7,801.50)$     

PROGRAMMING OF RADIOS 6,500.00$         6,500.00$         -$                 

ENGRAVING OF RADIOS 1,600.00           1,600.00           -                   

RADIO MANAGEMENT INTEGRATION -                      3,250.00           (3,250.00)        

COMMLINE TOTAL 8,100.00$         11,350.00$       (3,250.00)$     

GRAND TOTAL 616,316.27$    627,367.77$    (11,051.50)$   

Page 3 of 3

Agenda Packet  Page 101 of 171



Page 1 of 2 

       
 

  Staff Report 
South Bay Regional Public Communications 

Authority 
 
MEETING DATE: November 20, 2018 
 
ITEM:   E4 
 
TO:   Executive Committee     
 
FROM:  Erick B. Lee, Executive Director   
 
SUBJECT: AMENDMENT TO THE COMMUNICATION EQUIPMENT 

PURCHASE AND REIMBURSEMENT AGREEMENT WITH THE 
CITY OF HAWTHORNE; AND  

 
 APPROPRIATION OF $79,588.37 FROM THE ENTERPRISE 

FUND UNRESERVED BALANCE TO THE TECHNICAL 
SERVICES PARTS-BILLING ACCOUNT; AND 

 
APPROVE A PURCHASE ORDER TO COMMLINE 
INCORPORATED FOR RADIO EQUIPMENT RELATED TO THE 
HAWTHORNE POLICE DEPARTMENT’S OPERATION OF ITS 
AIRSHIP UNIT ON THE INSB RADIO NETWORK IN THE NOT TO 
EXCEED AMOUNT OF $79,588.37 

 
ATTACHMENTS: 1.  Amendment No. 1 
   2.  Quote from Commline, Inc. 
    
 
RECOMMENDATION 
Staff recommends that the Executive Committee: 
 

1. Approve an amendment to the Communication Equipment Purchase and 
Reimbursement Agreement with the City of Hawthorne; and  

2. Appropriate $79,588.37 from the Enterprise Fund Unreserved Balance to the 
Technical Services Parts-Billing Account; and 

3. Approve a purchase order to Commline Incorporated for helicopter radio 
equipment related to the Hawthorne Police Department’s operation of its Airship 
Unit on the INSB Radio Network in the not to exceed amount of $79,588.37. 
 

Agenda Packet  Page 102 of 171



Page 2 of 2 

 
 
 
 
DISCUSSION 
The Hawthorne Police Department’s Airship Program operates one MD 500 helicopter 
that flies four days per week. The helicopter is support for the Patrol Bureau, but also 
assists other units when called on.  
 
With the region’s upcoming transition from an analog radio system to digital trunking, new 
radio equipment is necessary for all units to operate on the INSB Radio Network, including 
patrol vehicles, fire response vehicles, and airship units.  Commline Inc. has provided a 
quote for the equipment necessary for the Airship Unit to operate on the INSB Radio 
Network in the amount of $79,588.37.   
 
Because the Hawthorne Police Department has already been authorized to purchase its 
radios for the INSB project through the Authority, including its $1,568,537.94 share of the 
Authority’s $6,660,734.69 purchase of mobile and portable radios with Motorola Solutions, 
Inc. and Commline Inc., the City of Hawthorne has requested that this purchase of 
helicopter radio equipment be handled in like manner. 
 
As presented under Item E3 of this agenda, the City of Hawthorne’s costs associated with 
the no interest financing purchase of mobile and portable radios exceeded the amounts 
agreed-upon under its Communication Equipment Purchase and Reimbursement 
Agreement with the Authority by $46,289.53.  The amendment to the agreement provides 
for the reimbursement of that amount plus the additional $79,588.37 for a total increased 
amount of $125,877.90.  As of November 5, 2018, the City of Hawthorne has already paid 
the exceeded amount of $46,289.53.  Therefore, the only amount due under the amended 
agreement would be the $79,588.37 for the associated radio purchases related to the 
Airship Program. 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
An appropriation of $79,588.37 is necessary to complete this purchase.  The Authority will 
be reimbursed by the City of Hawthorne for this expenditure. 
 

Agenda Packet  Page 103 of 171



ATTACHMENT #1 

Agenda Item E4 

Agenda Packet  Page 104 of 171



1 

AMENDMENT #1 TO THE COMMUNICATION EQUIPMENT PURCHASE AND 
REIMBURSEMENT AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE SOUTH BAY REGIONAL 
PUBLIC COMMUNICATIONS AUTHORITY AND THE CITY OF HAWTHORNE 

This Amendment No. 1 is to certain Agreement for Communication Equipment 
Purchase and Reimbursement between the South Bay Regional Public 
Communications Authority (herein after “RCC”) and the City of Hawthorne (hereinafter 
“CITY”), dated December 5, 2017 (“Agreement”). 

Recitals. 

A. RCC and CITY entered into an agreement for the purchase of 
communication equipment.  

B. RCC and CITY desire to amend the Agreement to reflect the actual costs 
associated with the purchase and include the additional purchase of equipment for 
CITY’s Police Department Airship Program. 

NOW, THEREFORE, the parties agree as follows: 

Section 1. The total amount payable by CITY to RCC under this project shall 
be $1,648,126.31 as set forth in Exhibit A. 

Section 2. CITY was credited $781,355 for this project by an appropriation 
made by the Board of Directors on October 11, 2018. 

Section 3. CITY issued payment to RCC in the amount of $740,893.41 and 
$46,289.53 by November 1, 2018. 

Section 2. CITY will remit the payment of $79,588.37 to RCC for the purchase 
of equipment for its Police Department’s Airship Program by December 1, 2018. 

Section 3. Except as amended by this Amendment, the remaining provisions 
of the Agreement shall remain in full force and effect. 

Agenda Packet  Page 105 of 171



2 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement on behalf of the 
parties. 

SOUTH BAY REGIONAL PUBLIC COMMUNICATIONS AUTHORITY 

By_____________________________ 
    ERICK B. LEE  
    Executive Director 

Date_________________________ 

CITY OF HAWTHORNE 

By_____________________________ 
    ARNOLD SHADBEHR   

 Interim City Manager 

Date_________________________ 

Agenda Packet  Page 106 of 171



 3 

EXHIBIT A 
 

AMOUNT PAYABLE 
 
 

ORIGINAL PROJECT       
ITEMS AGREEMENT   ACTUAL   DIFFERENCE  
EXTEND SUBSCRIBER WITH 37% DISCOUNT $ 1,528,445.63   $ 1,393,222.44   $  135,223.19  
ACCESSORIES WITH 30% DISCOUNT          19,956.15           65,579.25       (45,623.10) 
Q4 ADDITIONAL 3% DISCOUNT         (45,853.37)         (41,796.67)        (4,056.70) 
APPORTIONED CREDIT                         -            (22,089.07)        22,089.07  
SUBTOTAL     1,502,548.41      1,394,915.94       107,632.47  
RADIO MANAGEMENT SOFTWARE                        -             32,400.00       (32,400.00) 
EXTENDED WARRANTY (SFS COMP)                        -           113,422.00     (113,422.00) 
MOTOROLA TOTAL $ 1,502,548.41   $ 1,540,737.94   $  (38,189.53) 
  
PROGRAMMING OF RADIOS $      16,200.00   $      16,200.00   $                 -    
ENGRAVING OF RADIOS            3,500.00             3,500.00                       -    
RADIO MANAGEMENT INTEGRATION                        -               8,100.00         (8,100.00) 
COMMLINE TOTAL $      19,700.00   $      27,800.00   $    (8,100.00) 

 
TOTAL $ 1,522,248.41   $ 1,568,537.94   $  (46,289.53) 

 
 
AIRSHIP PROGRAM RADIO EQUIPMENT PURCHASE AMOUNT 
EQUIPMENT $72,189.00 
SALES TAX (10.25%)  7,399.37 
TOTAL $79,588.37  
 
 
GRAND TOTAL FOR COMMUNICATION EQUIPMENT PURCHASE AND 
REIMBURSEMENT AGREEMENT AMOUNT 
ORIGINAL PROJECT $1,568,537.94 
AIRSHIP PROGRAM RADIO EQUIPMENT PURCHASE 79,588.37 
TOTAL $1,648,126.31 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Packet  Page 107 of 171



	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

 
 
 

ATTACHMENT #2 
 

Agenda Item E4 
	

Agenda Packet  Page 108 of 171



DATE: SALES REP:

COMPANY: COMPANY:
ATTENTION: ATTENTION:
ADDRESS: ADDRESS:
CITY/ST/ZIP: CITY/ST/ZIP:
PHONE: PHONE:
EMAIL: EMAIL:

QTY UNIT COST EXT COST

1 $49,142.00 $49,142.00

1 $2,600.00 $2,600.00
1 $500.00 $500.00
1
1
1 $1,125.00 $1,125.00
1
1 $1,275.00 $1,275.00
1 $895.00 $895.00
1 $360.00 $360.00
1 $645.00 $645.00

1 $2,600.00 $2,600.00
1 $500.00 $500.00
1
1
1 $1,125.00 $1,125.00
1
1 $1,275.00 $1,275.00
1 $895.00 $895.00
1 $360.00 $360.00
1 $645.00 $645.00

1 $2,600.00 $2,600.00
1 $500.00 $500.00
1
1
1 $1,125.00 $1,125.00
1
1 $1,275.00 $1,275.00
1 $895.00 $895.00
1 $360.00 $360.00
1 $645.00 $645.00

1 $399.00 $399.00
1 $448.00 $448.00

Sub-Total $72,189.00
Tax (10.25%) $7,399.37

Freight
GRAND TOTAL $79,588.37

PO # Date

Q498 P25 OTAR w/ Multi-Key
G996 OTAP (Over the Air Programming)
Q52 Conventional Front Panel Programming

H38 SMARTZONE Trunking w/ Omnilink
Q361 Astro P25 Trunking
Q15 AES Encryption w/ DES, DES-XL, DES-OFB

Programming CablePC-9000

QA000580 TDMA Operation
Q806 CAI FOR P25
Q507 FCC Mandated Narrow Band Option

purchase orders

Notes: 20% restocking fee will apply to returns and/or canceled 

Module Three (Three bands)
H91TGD9PW7N APX8000 UHF/7/800MHz Module (136-174, 380-520, & 764-870MHz)

Encryption Key Load Cable

Quote good for 30 days.

KVL-9000

111267-2-93-AWX-T1-P93659

12501 Hawthorne Blvd

Hawthorne CA, 90250

310-349-2829

SPECIAL NOTES: Customer Approval Signature

TDFM-9300 w/Type A Digital Modules and
VHF Low Band (30 to 50 MHz) analog module

13700 Cimmaron Ave.,Gardena, CA 90249
(Main) 310.390.8003  (Fax) 310.390.4393

www.CommlineInc.com

Jeff Fukasawa

SHIP TO:
Same

BILL TO:

jarmstrong@hawthorneca.gov

Module Two (Three bands)

Q507 FCC Mandated Narrow Band Option
H38 SMARTZONE Trunking w/ Omnilink

MODEL/PART # DESCRIPTION

REQUEST FOR QUOTE
9/26/2018

Project 93569

Josh Armstrong

Hawthorne Police Department

H91TGD9PW7N APX8000 UHF/7/800MHz Module (136-174, 380-520, & 764-870MHz)

QA000580 TDMA Operation
Q806 CAI FOR P25
Q507 FCC Mandated Narrow Band Option
H38 SMARTZONE Trunking w/ Omnilink

Q361 Astro P25 Trunking
Q15 AES Encryption w/ DES, DES-XL, DES-OFB

Q498 P25 OTAR w/ Multi-Key
G996 OTAP (Over the Air Programming)
Q52 Conventional Front Panel Programming

Module One (Three bands)
H91TGD9PW7N APX8000 UHF/7/800MHz Module (136-174, 380-520, & 764-870MHz)

QA000580 TDMA Operation
Q806 CAI FOR P25

G996 OTAP (Over the Air Programming)
Q52 Conventional Front Panel Programming

Q361 Astro P25 Trunking
Q15 AES Encryption w/ DES, DES-XL, DES-OFB

Q498 P25 OTAR w/ Multi-Key

Page 1 of 1

Agenda Packet  Page 109 of 171



Page 1 of 3 

       
 

  Staff Report 
South Bay Regional Public Communications 

Authority 
 
MEETING DATE: November 20, 2018 
 
ITEM:   E5 
 
TO:   Executive Committee     
 
FROM:  Erick B. Lee, Executive Director   
 
SUBJECT: AMENDMENT TO SALARY RANGE FOR ACCOUNTANT 

POSITION; AND 
 
 AUTHORIZATION FOR EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR TO EXECUTE A 

SIDE LETTER OF AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE MANAGEMENT 
AND CONFIDENTIAL BARGAINING GROUP AND THE SOUTH 
BAY REGIONAL PUBLIC COMMUNICATIONS AUTHORITY 

 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 1.  Side Letter of Agreement 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
Staff recommends that the Executive Committee amend the salary range for the position 
of Accountant as indicated below and authorize the Executive Director to execute a side 
letter of agreement with the Management and Confidential Bargaining Group 
memorializing this change in salary. 
 

ACCOUNTANT SALARY RANGE 
STEP MONTHLY HOURLY 
Step A $6,322 $36.47 
Step B $6,638 $38.30 
Step C $6,970 $40.21 
Step D $7,318 $42.22 
Step E $7,684 $44.33 

 
  
DISCUSSION 

Agenda Packet  Page 110 of 171



Page 2 of 3 
 

The position of Accountant was added to the Authority’s Position Classification Plan on 
September 18, 2018. Although authorized by the Plan and covered by the Authority’s 
Memorandum of Understanding with its Management and Confidential Employees, the 
position is currently vacant.   
 
The Executive Director is in the process of evaluating the needs of the Finance 
Department and anticipates opening a recruitment to fill this position in the near future.  
Staff conducted a survey of nearby jurisdictions to determine if the base salary for this 
position was in-line with similar jobs.  This survey included both Accountant and Senior 
Accountant positions.  The justification for including both positions in the survey is the 
proposed structure of the Authority’s Finance Department, which includes one Accountant 
who will report directly the Finance & Performance Audit Manager.  With only two 
employees assigned to this important area of the Authority’s business, staff envisions the 
Accountant to be a journey-level position that functions at a level somewhere between the 
Accountant and Senior Accountant positions of a typical full service municipality Finance 
Department.  The results of this survey are as follows: 
 

JURISDICTION POSITION TITLE(S)  BOTTOM STEP   TOP STEP  
SBRPCA ACCOUNTANT $7,479 $9,091 
GARDENA SENIOR ACCOUNTANT $6,125 $7,818 
HAWTHORNE ACCOUNTANT $5,451 $8,076 
MANHATTAN BEACH ACCOUNTANT $5,130 $6,767 
MANHATTAN BEACH SENIOR ACCOUNTANT $6,221 $8,076 
CULVER CITY SENIOR ACCOUNTANT $6,482 $7,913 
EL SEGUNDO ACCOUNTANT $5,953 $7,003 
EL SEGUNDO SENIOR ACCOUNTANT $6,622 $7,819 
HERMOSA BEACH ACCOUNTANT $5,893 $7,162 
REDONDO BEACH ACCOUNTANT $4,965 $5,669 
AVERAGE (EXCLUDING SBRPCA) $5,871 $7,367 

 
 
The average top step base salary for the cities surveyed is $7,367 per month.  The current 
salary for the Authority’s position is $9,091 per month, which is 23.4% above the average. 
 
When focusing the survey on the Authority’s member agencies only, the average top step 
base salary is $7,684 per month, as indicated by the table below. 
 

JURISDICTION POSITION TITLES BOTTOM STEP TOP STEP 
SBRPCA ACCOUNTANT $7,479 $9,091 
GARDENA SENIOR ACCOUNTANT $6,125 $7,818 
HAWTHORNE ACCOUNTANT $5,451 $8,076 
MANHATTAN BEACH ACCOUNTANT $5,130 $6,767 
MANHATTAN BEACH SENIOR ACCOUNTANT $6,221 $8,076 
AVERAGE (EXCLUDING SBRPCA) $5,732 $7,684 

 
 
In order to ensure that the Authority’s compensation for its Accountant position is not out 
of line with comparable positions in the region, staff recommends reducing the top step 
base salary of this position to the average of the surveyed member cities’ positions of 
$7,684 per month.  This reduction would ensure the Authority remains competitive in the 

Agenda Packet  Page 111 of 171



Page 3 of 3 
 

labor market but without paying a salary range that is unnecessarily excessive for the 
region. 
 
If the salary range is amended by the Executive Committee as recommended, a side letter 
of agreement with the Management and Confidential Employees Bargaining Group is 
necessary to memorialize this change. 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
By reducing the top step base salary to $7,684 per month, the Authority will save over 
$20,000 per year in salary and benefits costs. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Packet  Page 112 of 171



ATTACHMENT #1 

Agenda Item E5 

Agenda Packet  Page 113 of 171



Page 1 of 1 
 

 
 
 

SIDE LETTER OF AGREEMENT BETWEEN 
THE MANAGEMENT AND CONFIDENTIAL BARGAINING GROUP 

AND THE SOUTH BAY REGIONAL PUBLIC COMMUNICATIONS AUTHORITY 
 

 
This Agreement is hereby entered into between the South Bay Regional Public 
Communications Authority (“Authority”) and the Management and Confidential Bargaining 
Group (“Management Group”).  
 
The Management Group and the Authority have agreed to modify the salary range for the 
position of Accountant as indicated in Appendix A (Salary Schedules) of the Memorandum 
of Understanding (“MOU”) dated July 1, 2016 through June 30, 2019 between the 
Management Group and the Authority.  The intent of this Side Letter is to modify the Fiscal 
Year 2018/2019 salary range of the Accountant position listed in Appendix A as follows: 

 
APPENDIX A 

 
ACCOUNTANT   
   

Salary Schedule FY 18-19 
Monthly  Hourly  

Step A $6,322 $36.47 
Step B $6,638 $38.30 
Step C $6,970 $40.21 
Step D $7,318 $42.22 
Step E $7,684 $44.33 
   

 
 
 
 

For the Management Group: Date: 
 
 
 
_________________________ ________________________  
Shannon Kauffman 
 
 
For the Authority: Date: 
 
 
 
_________________________ ________________________ 
Erick B. Lee 
Executive Director 

Agenda Packet  Page 114 of 171



Page 1 of 2 

       
 

  Staff Report 
South Bay Regional Public Communications 

Authority 
 
MEETING DATE: November 20, 2018 
 
ITEM:   E6 
 
TO:   Executive Committee     
 
FROM:  Erick B. Lee, Executive Director   
 
SUBJECT: REQUEST FROM EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR TO ATTEND 

LIEBERT CASSIDY WHITMORE’S 2019 ANNUAL PUBLIC 
SECTOR EMPLOYMENT LAW CONFERENCE 

 
ATTACHMENTS: None. 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
Staff recommends that the Executive Committee approve the Executive Director’s request 
to attend Liebert Cassidy Whitmore’s 2019 Annual Public Sector Employment Law 
Conference. 
 
  
BACKGROUND 
Under the terms of his employment agreement with the Authority, the Executive Director 
must secure approval from the Executive Committee prior to incurring travel-related 
business expenses.   
 
The purpose of this report is to request such approval in accordance with the agreement. 
 
 
DISCUSSION 
Liebert Cassidy Whitmore(“LCW”) is one of the largest public management employment 
law firms in California, with over 80 attorneys in five offices.  The attorneys of LCW provide 
specialized training and consulting services related to compliance with employment law 
and regulations at training seminars throughout California and for the South Bay 
Employment Relations Consortium, of which the Authority is a member.   
 

Agenda Packet  Page 115 of 171



Page 2 of 2 

Each year, LCW hosts a Public Sector Employment Law conference that provides 
attendees with opportunities to stay up-to-date with important legal developments, obtain 
expert advice, and learn trends and tactics to improve agency success.  The Executive 
Director has requested to attend the 2019 conference which is being held January 23-25 
in Palm Desert, California.   
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
The estimated costs associated with this request total $1,151.55, as indicated below, and 
were included in the Authority’s FY2018/19 adopted budget. 
 

Full Conference Registration:      $550.00 
Lodging         $601.55 
Total:      $1,151.55 

 
 
Travel to and from the conference venue will be accomplished by use of an Authority-
owned vehicle with other staff members who are also attending this training.   

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Packet  Page 116 of 171



Page 1 of 2 

Staff Report 
South Bay Regional Public Communications 

Authority 

MEETING DATE: November 20, 2018 

ITEM: E7 

TO:  Executive Committee 

FROM: John Krok, Administrative Services Manager 

SUBJECT: AUTHORIZE THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR TO EXECUTE AN 
AGREEMENT WITH COMMLINE INCORPORATED FOR AVTEC 
& STANCIL LICENSE PURCHASE, INTEGRATION AND 
PROGRAMMING SERVICES; AND 

APPROVE A CORRESPONDING PURCHASE ORDER IN THE 
TOTAL AMOUNT OF $139,153.31 FOR THIS PURCHASE; AND  

APPROVE AN OPERATING BUDGET TRANSFER FROM 
TECHNICAL SERVICES SALARIES TO OUTSIDE TECHNICAL 
SERVICES-TOWERS & EQUIPMENT IN THE AMOUNT OF 
$139,153.31 

ATTACHMENTS: 1.  Agreement 

RECOMMENDATION 
Staff recommends that the Executive Committee authorize the Executive Director to 
execute an agreement with Commline Incorporated for Avtec and Stancil license 
purchase, integration and programming services, approve a corresponding purchase 
order in the total amount of $139,153.31 for this purchase, and approve an operating 
budget transfer from Technical Services Salaries (10-70-311-5101) to Outside Technical 
Services-Towers & Equipment (10-70-311-5521) in the amount of $139,153.31. 

DISCUSSION 
The Authority continues to move forward with a P-25, trunked, digital, and encrypted radio 
network with the Interoperability Network of the South Bay (INSB) Project.  The Project 
includes the management of a $5,000,000 2016 Urban Area Security Initiative (UASI) 

Agenda Packet  Page 117 of 171



2 of 2 

grant for radio system infrastructure and the purchase of over $6,500,000 in mobile and 
portable radios and accessories. When the INSB transition is complete, there will be 
approximately 2,000 active radios on the system. This network is anticipated to go-live in 
February 2019.  
 
Historically, the Authority has utilized the consulting services of Commline Incorporated 
for all of its radio programming and infrastructure maintenance needs. The Authority 
continues to work with Commline to complete a successful migration to a P-25, trunked, 
digital and encrypted network. As completion of the project nears, staff and the Authority’s 
consultant have identified additional system hardware, software and integration that needs 
to be completed to ensure the agency’s member and contract cities can operate on the 
INSB Network. 
 
The Authority currently records all phone calls and analog radio traffic on the Stancil 
Recording System. The INSB project will result in the need to not only record our existing 
analog channels, but also the new digital channels/talkgroups. After evaluating its 
recording needs, staff is recommending the purchase of an additional 50 Stancil/IP 
Wireline licenses. This will give the Authority the ability to record all current analog 
channels, the planned digital channels and channels that may be identified by the 
Authority’s stakeholders in the future that need to be recorded. Staff proposes that 
Commline perform the programming and integration for this project. The total cost for the 
licenses, programming and integration is $40,706.25. 
 
Additionally, the transition to the P-25, trunked, digital network will require additional Avtec 
endpoint licenses for each channel/talkgroup. These licenses will be needed in order to 
operate on the ICI system upon successful migration. After evaluating its radio channel 
needs, staff is recommending the purchase of 60 Avtec VP Gate P-25 Endpoint licenses. 
Commline will configure, network and integrate into the ISSI Gateway Server and add to 
the dispatch consoles. The Authority will maintain all of its analog channels for depth and 
redundancy. The total cost for the licenses, networking, configuration and integration is 
$62,471.28. 
 
Finally, the  Authority currently hosts Avtec radio software for the agency’s analog radio 
communications on a main and backup server. The migration to INSB requires us to host 
additional software for P-25 communication to the ICI-System (Glendale). The Authority 
recommends hosting the additional software  on a main and backup server. This will create 
redundancy and avoid critical impact during maintenance or outage events. The Authority 
recommends the purchase of (2) additional VP Trunking Gateway servers. Commline will 
program, configure, network and install the servers. The total cost for hardware, 
programming, configuration, networking and installation is $35,975.78.  

 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
FY2018/19 funds associated with salary savings from vacant positions in the Technical 
Services Division could be used for this purchase of radio system hardware, software, and 
integration services.  In order to utilize these funds for this purpose, a budget transfer of 
$139,153.31 from the Salaries & Benefits category to the Supplies & Services category is 
necessary. 

 

Agenda Packet  Page 118 of 171



ATTACHMENT #1 

Agenda Item E7 

Agenda Packet  Page 119 of 171



Agenda Packet  Page 120 of 171



Agenda Packet  Page 121 of 171



Agenda Packet  Page 122 of 171



Agenda Packet  Page 123 of 171



Agenda Packet  Page 124 of 171



Agenda Packet  Page 125 of 171



Agenda Packet  Page 126 of 171



Agenda Packet  Page 127 of 171



Agenda Packet  Page 128 of 171



Agenda Packet  Page 129 of 171



Agenda Packet  Page 130 of 171



Agenda Packet  Page 131 of 171



Agenda Packet  Page 132 of 171



Agenda Packet  Page 133 of 171



 

Page 1 of 1 

       
 

  Staff Report 
South Bay Regional Public Communications 

Authority 
 
MEETING DATE: November 20, 2018 
 
ITEM:   F 
 
TO:   Executive Committee and User Committee  
 
FROM:  Erick B. Lee, Executive Director   
 
SUBJECT: EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR’S REPORT 
 
ATTACHMENTS: None 
 
 
The Executive Committee and User Committee will be provided an oral report on the 
following topics: 
 

• Staff Introduction 

• Status of Filling Vacant Communications Operator Positions 

• Update on UASI Grant Reimbursement  

 

 
 

Agenda Packet  Page 134 of 171



Page 1 of 4 

       
 

  Staff Report 
South Bay Regional Public Communications 

Authority 
 
MEETING DATE: November 20, 2018 
 
ITEM:   H1 
 
TO:   Executive Committee     
 
FROM:  Erick B. Lee, Executive Director   
 
SUBJECT: STEP 4 BOARD OF REVIEW HEARING:  GRIEVANCE FILED BY 

COMMUNCIATIONS OPERATOR SIRENA BOSKOVICH   
 
ATTACHMENTS: 1.  Grievance 

2.  Step 1 Decision by Communications Supervisor  

 3.  Request for Step 2 Review 

 4.  Step 2 Decision by Administration Manager  

5.  Request for Step 3 Review 

 6.  Additional Information Provided on June 28, 2018 

 7.  Step 3 Decision by Executive Director  

8.  Request for Step 4 Review 

 9.  Grievance Procedure from the Teamsters’ MOU 

 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
Staff recommends that the Executive Committee conduct a Step 4 Board of Review 
hearing on the grievance filed by Communications Operator Sirena Boskovich in 
accordance with Article 16, Section 16.6(d) of the Authority’s Memorandum of 
Understanding (“MOU”) with the California Teamsters Public, Professional and Medical 
Employees Union Local 911 (“Teamsters”).  
 
 
BACKGROUND 
In order to promote improved employer/employee relations by affording employees an 
informal method for further consideration of complaints which have not been resolved 

Agenda Packet  Page 135 of 171



Page 2 of 4 

through discussions, the Authority has established a grievance procedure with its 
employees represented by the Teamsters.  As established by this procedure, any 
permanent, non-probationary employee shall have the right to grieve a decision made by 
the Authority affecting his/her employment and relating to matters defined as “any dispute 
concerning the interpretation or application of this written Memorandum of Understanding, 
or of Authority Rules & Regulations governing personnel practices or working conditions.” 
 
Under this procedure, an employee who wishes to grieve an incident should first discuss 
the matter with his/her immediate supervisor within five (5) calendar days of the incident. 
If not satisfied with the decision reached by this discussion, the employee shall then have 
the right to file a formal grievance in writing, within ten (10) calendar days after receiving 
the informal decision of the immediate supervisor.   
 
Step 1 of the formal grievance process begins when an employee presents a written 
grievance to his/her immediate supervisor.  Upon receipt of a written grievance, the 
supervisor must render a written decision within five (5) calendar days.  The employee 
has five (5) calendar days to appeal this Step 1 decision to the Administration Manager if 
he/she is not satisfied with the decision. 
 
Step 2 of the formal grievance process begins when an employee appeals a Step 1 
decision to the Administration Manager.  Upon receipt of an appeal of a Step 1 decision, 
the Administration Manager shall promptly discuss the grievance with the employee and 
his/her representative, if any, and any other persons having relevant information about the 
grievance.  The Administration Manager must render a written decision within ten (10) 
calendar days.  The employee has five (5) calendar days to appeal this Step 2 decision to 
the Executive Director if he/she is not satisfied with the decision. 
 
Step 3 of the formal grievance process begins when an employee appeals a Step 2 
decision to the Executive Director.  Upon receipt of an appeal of a Step 1 decision, the 
Executive Director shall promptly discuss the grievance with the employee and his/her 
representative, if any, and any other persons having relevant information about the 
grievance.  The Executive Director must render a written decision within ten (10) calendar 
days.  The employee has twenty (20) calendar days to appeal this Step 3 decision to the 
Executive Committee if he/she is not satisfied with the decision. 
 
Step 4 of the formal grievance process begins when an employee appeals a Step 3 
decision to the Executive Committee (Board of Review).  The procedures outlined in the 
MOU for Step 4 review specify that:   
 

1. Formal grievances and appeals shall go directly to the Executive Committee after 
the Executive Director level. 

2. The Executive Committee shall act as hearing officers and its decision shall be 
final. 

3. The Executive Director of the Authority will not sit on the review panel as a 
hearing officer. 

4. At this step, the hearing shall be convened within fifteen (15) calendar days by 
the Executive Committee. 

5. A formal decision shall be submitted to the Union within twenty (20) calendar 
days of the final Step 4 hearing. 

6. The parties may agree to waive the time limits at any step. 
   

Agenda Packet  Page 136 of 171



Page 3 of 4 

 
 
 
DISCUSSION 
On or about April 24, 2018, Communications Operator Sirena Boskovich filed a grievance 
(Attachment #1) over the following issues: 
 

1. Inability to utilize vacation leave benefits provided to her under the MOU. 

2. Dissatisfaction with the Authority’s vacation leave selection process for 
Communications Operators. 

3. Allegation of differential treatment. 
 
As proposed remedies, Communications Operator Boskovich has requested that: 
 

• she not be subject to the 336 hour limit on vacation leave accruals specified in 
Section 9.11 of the MOU.  

• any amount of vacation leave that she elects to convert to cash not be subject to 
the 85% regular rate of pay per Section 12.12 of the MOU. Rather, she has 
requested that this amount should be paid at 100% of her regular rate of pay. 

• the vacation leave selection practice for Communications Operators be revised to 
be more equitable for all employees while still maintaining a seniority component. 

• the Authority provide equal treatment to all employees regardless of their 
respective bargaining unit. 

• if exceptions are provided by the Authority to one employee, then all employees 
should have the opportunity to request similar exceptions on a case-by-case basis. 

 
Step 1 of this process was handled by Communications Supervisor Shander Coston and 
the written decision was issued on April 26, 2018 (Attachment #2).  Communications 
Operator Boskovich was not satisfied with this decision and appealed it to Administration 
Manager John Krok, via her Teamsters representative Carlos Rubio, on May 1, 2018 
(Attachment #3).  
 
As part of the Step 2 process, Administration Manager John Krok met with Mr. Rubio and 
Communications Operator Boskovich on May 8, 2018 to discuss the issues identified in 
the grievance.  He issued his written decision on May 17, 2018 (Attachment #4).  
Communications Operator Boskovich was not satisfied with this decision and appealed it 
to Executive Director Erick Lee, via her Teamsters representative Carlos Rubio, on May 
18, 2018 (Attachment #5).  
 
As part of the Step 3 process Executive Director Erick Lee met with Mr. Rubio and 
Communications Operator Boskovich on May 30, 2018 to discuss the issues identified in 
the grievance.  At the conclusion of that meeting, Mr. Rubio requested that the Executive 
Director not render a decision on the grievance within the next 10 days as specified in the 
MOU.  Instead, Mr. Rubio requested that he wait until Mr. Rubio would be able to provide 
him with supplementary information.  That supplementary information was provided to the 
Executive Director on June 28, 2018 (Attachment #6).  Due to the additional time needed 
to analyze and research the supplementary information, Mr. Rubio agreed to extend the 
deadline for the Step 3 decision until July 19, 2018.  This written decision was issued on 
July 19, 2018 (Attachment #7).   

Agenda Packet  Page 137 of 171



Page 4 of 4 

 
Communications Operator Boskovich was not satisfied with this decision and appealed it 
to the Executive Committee, via her Teamsters representative Carlos Rubio, on August 
14, 2018 (Attachment #8).  While this date is in excess of the 20 calendar days to file the 
request for a Step 4 appeal, Mr. Rubio did contact the Executive Director on July 26, 2018 
requesting an extension for filing the appeal due to scheduling issues.  This request was 
granted and the deadline to request a Step 4 appeal was extended to August 15, 2018.   
 
Although the MOU specifies that the Executive Committee must convene a Board of 
Review hearing to consider the grievance within 15 days of receiving the request, Mr. 
Rubio requested that this item not be considered at the next available meeting of the 
Executive Committee, which was August 21, 2018.  Additionally, both the Authority and 
the Teamsters agreed to not schedule this hearing for the Executive Committee’s meeting 
on September 18, 2018 due to scheduling issues of involved parties.  Furthermore, this 
item was not considered at the October 16, 2018 meeting due to concerns from the 
Teamsters about the forum for the hearing.  Those issues have been resolved and the 
grievance can now be considered at this meeting of November 20, 2018. 
 
Staff recommends that the Executive Committee conduct the hearing as follows: 
 

1. Public Comment 

2. Argument for Grievance by Communications Operator Boskovich & Mr. Rubio 

3. Rebuttal by Executive Director 

4. Surrebuttal by Communications Operator Boskovich & Mr. Rubio 

5. Deliberation by the Executive Committee  
 
Under the terms of the MOU, the Executive Committee shall submit its formal decision to 
the Teamsters within 20 days of the Board of Review hearing and its decision shall be 
final.   
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
None at this time. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Packet  Page 138 of 171



ATTACHMENT #1 

Agenda Item H1 

Agenda Packet  Page 139 of 171



Hi John, 
 
As you now know I will be losing vacation time here shortly. I truly pride myself in coming to 
work and helping with the overtime, however at the same time I think it is important in this line 
of work that we all have time off to re-energize.  
 
I'm aware of the time and energy that goes into the recruiting process and where we currently 
stand. I hope that as we move forward a new model can be implemented with how vacation 
and holiday time is selected, more so now since senior dispatchers are monopolizing the 
vacation time by bidding 6 to 8 weeks off a year. However in the meantime can something be 
done regarding the vacation hours that I will be losing? This comes even after I cashed out the 
maximum amount of vacation hours (72 hours) allowed during the last October 2017 payout. 
 
I will start losing vacation time on the April 27th paycheck up until the June 8th paycheck. My 
June vacation will then drop me below the maximum 336 hours allowed to accumulate and 
then I will start losing again from August 17, 2018 through October 26, 2018.  
 
Here is the breakdown.  
 
April 27, 2018 - June 8th, 2018:  Projected to lose 26 hours 
June Vacation:  I'll use 36 hours  
August 17, 2018 - October 26, 2018: Projected to lose 28 hours  
November Payout: I'll cash in 72 hours again  
 
 
 
Thank you for your time, 
Sirena Boskovich 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Packet  Page 140 of 171



ATTACHMENT #2 

Agenda Item H1 

Agenda Packet  Page 141 of 171



To: Sirena Boskovich, Communications Operator 

Date: April 26, 2018 

From: Shander Coston, Communications Operator 

Re:  Article 16 – Grievance- (received on April 24, 2018) 

 

In response to Section 9.11 – Vacation Leave/APM: You expressed your inability to select more than 1 
week of vacation during each shift bid.  And because you will reach your maximum accrual per the MOU, 
you feel that you are being forced to convert vacation hours for cash at a lesser rate.  You further stated 
that because of the shift selection/vacation leave selection process, the option of cashing out vacation 
leave seems to be more so mandatory than optional.   I interpret your solution for this part of the 
grievance is to be allowed to continue to accrue vacation leave past your maximum hours or if you are 
forced to cash it out, to be able to cash it out at 100% rather than at 85% per your most recent 
Memorandum of Understanding.  

  As section 9.11 of the MOU states, all accumulation maximums cannot be exceeded and the 
accrual accumulation stops until accrual is below the maximum.  Section 12.12 does indicate that you do 
have the option of converting a limited number of vacation leave hours, depending on your years of 
service, at 85% of your regular rate of pay. If you choose not to cash out, the other option would be to 
not accrue additional vacation leave hours until your totals are below the maximum.  In both cases it 
appears that you are losing time and/or money.  Because the Memorandum of Understanding is a 
binding contract between SBRPCA and the Teamsters Union, it is not legal to just disregard it or make 
changes.  The solution would be to fight for changes to this procedure during contract negotiation time.  

In response to the 2nd portion of your grievance pertaining to the Vacation Selection Process:  Your 
suggestion of having all involved parties discuss a better way to execute the vacation selection process is 
an excellent idea that may lead to a solution.  The caveat that you should be aware of is that scheduling 
is management’s right.  The following is taken from Article 3 of the most recent MOU between SBRPCA 
and Teamsters Local 911: 

Section 3.1 – Management’s Rights.  Authority retains all rights not specifically delegated by this 
Agreement, including, but not limited to, the exclusive right to determine the mission of the constituent 
sections; set standards of service; determine procedures and standards of selection of employment and 
promotion; direct its employees; take disciplinary action; relieve its employees from duty because of 
lack of work or for other legitimate reasons; contract out work; maintain the efficiency of governmental 
operations; determine the methods, means, and personnel by which government operations are to be 
conducted; determine the content of job classifications; take all necessary actions to carry out its 
missions in emergencies; and exercise complete control and discretion over its organization and the 
technology of performing its work; determine work schedules; and make changes to work schedules.  
The determination of whether or not an emergency exists is solely within the discretion of authority and 
is expressly excluded from the grievance procedure.  

Agenda Packet  Page 142 of 171



April 26, 2018 

 

In response to your 3rd concern regarding differential treatment: I am not fully aware of, nor do I have 
any details pertaining to this ‘option’ you referred to that is possibly being provided to Supervisor Farley.  
Further inquiry into this matter should be addressed at the ADMIN level.  

I am an avid supporter of all personnel being treated fair and equal, always. 

 

 

Response respectfully submitted, 

 

_______________________________________________ 

Shander Coston, Communications Supervisor       Date 

 

 

  

 

 

  

 

Agenda Packet  Page 143 of 171



ATTACHMENT #3 

Agenda Item H1 

Agenda Packet  Page 144 of 171



From: Carlos Rubio <crubio@teamsters911.com> 
Sent: Tuesday, May 1, 2018 07:29 
Subject: Sirena Boskovich  
To: Krok, John <jkrok@rcc911.org>, Kauffman, Shannon <skauffman@rcc911.org> 
Cc: Boskovich, Sirena <sboskovich@rcc911.org> 
 
 
Good Morning John and Shannon, 
 
The purpose of this correspondence is to file a timely grievance in accordance to Article 16 of 
our Memorandum of Understanding at Step 2. 
 
We are emailing both of you because I’m not sure who will serve the role of the Administration 
Manager from the Authority for this purpose. 
 
Ms. Boskovich disagrees with the supervisor’s decision provided at Step 1 of the grievance 
procedure. 
 
We would like for all of the concerns submitted by Ms. Boskovich to be considered and 
reviewed in good faith. 
 
The issues are the following: 
 
1. Vacation Leave Benefit/ APM 
2. Vacation Selection Process 
3. Differential Treatment 
 
Please confirm receipt of this grievance and let me know when you are available to meet to 
have a Step 2 grievance to address the concerns brought forward by Ms. Boskovich. 
 
If you have any questions please feel free to contact me. 
 
Thank you, 
 
Carlos I. Rubio 
California Teamsters Local 911 
Public, Professional & Medical Employees Union 
9900 Flower Street 
Bellflower, CA 90706 
T: (562) 595-4518 Ext: 111 
F: (562) 427-7298  
E: crubio@teamsters911.com 

Agenda Packet  Page 145 of 171



ATTACHMENT #4 

Agenda Item H1 

Agenda Packet  Page 146 of 171



Page 1 of 2 

SOUTH BAY REGIONAL PUBLIC COMMUNICATIONS AUTHORITY 
 

M E M O R A N D U M 
 

      Date:  May 17th, 2018 
 
 
TO:  Sirena Boskovich, Communications Operator 
 
 
FROM: John Krok, Administration Manager 
 
 
SUBJECT: Step 2 Grievance Response 
 
 
I have reviewed your grievance and the First Level of Review (Step 1) grievance 
response issued to you on April 26, 2018 by your supervisor, Shander Coston.  
This memorandum shall serve as my Step 2 grievance response as the 
Administration Manager, pursuant to Section 16.6(b) of the Memorandum of 
Understanding (“MOU”) between the South Bay Regional Public 
Communications Authority (“Authority”)  and California TEAMSTERS Local 911 
(“TEAMSTERS”). 
I have considered the issues you have raised regarding the Vacation Leave 
Benefit/APM, the Vacation Selection Process and differential treatment.  
However, you have not raised a grievable issue at this time.     
MOU Article 16, Section 16.2 defines a “grievance” as “any dispute concerning 
the interpretation or application of this written Memorandum of Understanding, or 
of Authority Rules & Regulations governing personnel practices or working 
conditions.”  Additionally, represented employees only have the right to “grieve a 
decision made by the Authority affecting his/her employment, and relating to 
those matters defined in Section 16.2.”  (MOU Article 16, Section.3 [Emphasis 
added].) 
Your grievance does not allege that the Authority has misinterpreted, misapplied 
or failed to follow the Authority’s policies and regulations, or any specific MOU 
provisions.  As Mr. Carlos Rubio, your TEAMSTERS representative, stated 
during our meeting on May 8th, 2018, the “goal of [your] request is to find a 
mechanism to allow [you] to continue to accrue hours.”  Your complaint is based 
on your belief that the applicable MOU provisions and Authority’s 
policies/practices are set up in a manner that unfairly limits your ability to use 
vacation leave and continue to accrue vacation time.  The Authority is scheduling 
vacations and shifts in an appropriate manner, and it is following all applicable 
policies and MOU provisions, including Section 9.11, which sets vacation accrual 
and accumulation limits.   
It is also interesting to note that while on the one hand you raise concerns about 
differential treatment in your grievance, on the other hand you are specifically 

Agenda Packet  Page 147 of 171



Page 2 of 2 

requesting differential treatment – that you be allowed a one-time cash-out so 
that you will be in a position to accrue additional vacation time.  However, if the 
Authority provided such a cash-out to you, then other employees could have 
concern about the Authority acting contrary to the express terms of the MOU and 
applicable rules and policies.  Also, it would not be fair to treat you in a different 
manner than the other members of your bargaining unit. 
Additionally, the MOU does provide for relief in the event “the requirements of 
service necessitate cancellation of scheduled vacation leave and it cannot be 
rescheduled and used before the end of the calendar year” in that “a maximum of 
eighty (80) hours in addition to the accrual maximum may be carried over for use 
not later than February 1 of the following calendar year.”  While I do not believe 
this is your specific concern in this case, this provision does evidence that the 
Authority and TEAMSTERS have specifically contemplated situations where an 
employee is unable to use vacation and have negotiated provisions to address 
these concerns.   
Accordingly, your grievance is denied, as you have not raised a grievable issue.  
The Authority will, however, continue to treat all employees in an equitable 
manner, and to meet and confer with TEAMSTERS regarding issues within the 
scope of representation.  If you have any further questions, please do not 
hesitate to contact me. 
 
CC: Carlos Rubio, California TEAMSTERS Local 911 
 

Agenda Packet  Page 148 of 171



ATTACHMENT #5 

Agenda Item H1 

Agenda Packet  Page 149 of 171



From: Carlos Rubio <crubio@teamsters911.com>  
Sent: Friday, May 18, 2018 07:29 
To: Lee, Erick <elee@rcc911.org> 
Cc: Boskovich, Sirena <sboskovich@rcc911.org> 
Subject: Fwd: Step 2 Grievance Response 
 
Good Morning Mr. Lee:  
 
The purpose of this correspondence is to request this grievance to be heard at Step 3 of Article 
16 Grievance procedure of the MOU. 
 
The employee is not satisfied with the decision rendered at the Step 2 level and therefore we 
are appealing at your level. 
 
Please confirm receipt of this email and that we have filed a timely appeal. 
 
Let’s coordinate calendars to for you to hear the grievance. 
 
If you have any questions please feel free to contact me. 
 
Thank you, 

Carlos I. Rubio  
California Teamsters Local 911 
Public, Professional & Medical  Employees Union 
9900 Flower Street 
Bellflower, CA 90706 
T: (562) 595-4518 Ext: 111 
F: (562) 427-7298  
E: crubio@teamsters911.com 
 

 
Begin forwarded message: 

From: "Krok, John" <jkrok@rcc911.org> 
Date: May 17, 2018 at 10:29:26 AM PDT 
To: "Boskovich, Sirena" <sboskovich@rcc911.org> 
Cc: Carlos Rubio <crubio@teamsters911.com> 
Subject: Step 2 Grievance Response 

Sirena, 
Please see attached response for Step 2 of your grievance. 
  
  

Agenda Packet  Page 150 of 171



John Krok 
Administration Manager 
South Bay Regional Public Communications Authority 
4440 West Broadway 
Hawthorne, CA 90250 
310.973.1802 x103 
jkrok@rcc911.org 
  
<Boskovich Grievance.docx> 
 

Agenda Packet  Page 151 of 171



ATTACHMENT #6 

Agenda Item H1 

Agenda Packet  Page 152 of 171



Monday, July 2, 2018 at 4:31:43 PM Pacific Daylight Time

Page 1 of 4

Subject: Re: Sirena Boskovich Response
Date: Friday, June 29, 2018 at 04:14:14 Pacific Daylight Time
From: Carlos Rubio
To: Boskovich, Sirena
CC: Lee, Erick

Erick, thank you and therefore please let us know when you would expect to have a response by. We appreciate your
paOence and cooperaOon.

Carlos I. Rubio
California Teamsters Local 911
Public, Professional & Medical  Employees Union
9900 Flower Street
Bellflower, CA 90706
T: (562) 595-4518 Ext: 111
F: (562) 427-7298 
E: crubio@teamsters911.com

On Jun 29, 2018, at 3:43 AM, Boskovich, Sirena <sboskovich@rcc911.org> wrote:

I concur and do not have anything that I would like to add at this Ome. 

Thank you,

Sirena Boskovich 

From: Carlos Rubio <crubio@teamsters911.com>
Sent: Thursday, June 28, 2018 9:18:31 PM
To: Lee, Erick
Cc: Boskovich, Sirena
Subject: Sirena Boskovich Response
 
Dear Mr. Lee,
 
The following is our response to the meeOng we held on May 30, 2018. If Ms. Boskovich has anything to add
she will do so. We commiaed to gebng this to you today however, Ms. Boskovich has not seen this final drac
so I will let her tell you if she would like to make any modificaOons.
 
On or about April 24, 2018 employee Sirena Boskovich, CommunicaOons Operator, filed a grievance in
accordance to ArOcle 16 of the Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) in the following manner:
 

1. SecOon 9.11 – VacaOon Leave/ APM
a. Dispute concerning the interpretaOon and or applicaOon.

                                                               i.      As of the last vacaOon bid by nature of the selecOon process I was not able in a
good faith manner; to select vacaOon Ome off in excess of one week; due to the fact
that I will reach my maximum accrual per MOU I will be forced to convert for cash a
limited amount of hours of vacaOon in addiOon to losing vacaOon Ome. In my
opinion this represents a cancellaOon of my vacaOon. Specifically, because
according to our MOU the annual payment for unused vacaOon leave is supposed to

Agenda Packet  Page 153 of 171



Page 2 of 4

be opOonal but in this parOcular case it is mandatory and has been for many years.
                                                             ii.      My suggested correcOon for this is that since I do not have the opportunity to

select any vacaOon Ome off beyond one week I should not suffer the consequences
of losing Ome and cashing out at a lesser rate because I did not have the fair ability
to be approved to take addiOonal weeks off. Also, since I would be forced to cash
out I believe that I should be paid out at a higher rate.

2. VacaOon SelecOon Process
a. Dispute concerning the interpretaOon and or applicaOon.

                                                               i.      Provided that current employees have a high amount of service on average on
the books the available vacaOon slots are not enough to support the negoOated
vacaOon benefit in the MOU; Specifically with the current pracOce of allowing
employees to select unlimited and consecuOve weeks off at one Ome in a shic
selecOon bid.

                                                             ii.      My suggested correcOon is for the appropriate parOes to have a discussion on
how best to analyze and review a vacaOon selecOon process that maintains a
seniority component but that has other elements of fairness as it relates to the
issues brought up above.

3. DifferenOal Treatment
a. Dispute concerning the interpretaOon and or applicaOon of applicable MOU and or APM.

                                                               i.      As it relates to a flexibility and or opOon provided to supervisor Sandra Farley in
associaOon with usage of Ome accruals.

                                                             ii.      My suggested correcOon is for the Authority to treat all employees equal and
that if one excepOon is made for one employee regardless of their bargaining unit;
that all employees then have their opportunity to present their case on a case by
case scenario.

 
On or about April 26, 2018, her supervisor Shander Coston, CommunicaOons Supervisor (Mistakenly listed as
an CommunicaOons Operator in the Memo) responded to the grievance. Please see your files for reference.
 
Ms. Coston makes reference to the MOU, management rights, and does not address the circumstances
surrounding the preferenOal treatment witnesses by Ms. Boskovich herself.
 
As a result of this response Ms. Boskovich proceeded to the next level in the grievance process.
 
On or about May 1, 2018 Ms. Boskovich through representaOon filed the following grievance:
 
The purpose of this correspondence is to file a Omely grievance in accordance to ArOcle 16 of our
Memorandum of Understanding  at Step 2.
 
We are emailing both of you because I’m not sure who will serve the role of the AdministraOon Manager from
the Authority for this purpose.
 
Ms. Boskovich disagrees with the supervisor’s decision provided at Step 1 of the grievance procedure.
 
We would like for all of the concerns submiaed by Ms. Boskovich to be considered and reviewed in good faith.
 
The issues are the following:
 
1. VacaOon Leave Benefit/ APM
2. VacaOon SelecOon Process
3. DifferenOal Treatment
 
Please confirm receipt of this grievance and let me know when you are available to meet to have a Step 2
grievance to address the concerns brought forward by Ms. Boskovich.
 
On or about May 17, 2018 the Union received a response from John Krok, AdministraOon Manager (Copy which
you will find aaached)
 
In his response Mr. Krok sOpulates the following:
 

Agenda Packet  Page 154 of 171



Page 3 of 4

Your grievance does not allege that the Authority has misinterpreted, misapplied or failed to follow the
Authority’s policies and regulaOons, or any specific MOU provisions.  As Mr. Carlos Rubio, your TEAMSTERS
representaOve, stated during our meeOng on May 8th, 2018, the “goal of [your] request is to find a mechanism
to allow [you] to conOnue to accrue hours.”  Your complaint is based on your belief that the applicable MOU
provisions and Authority’s policies/pracOces are set up in a manner that unfairly limits your ability to use
vacaOon leave and conOnue to accrue vacaOon Ome.  The Authority is scheduling vacaOons and shics in an
appropriate manner, and it is following all applicable policies and MOU provisions, including SecOon 9.11,
which sets vacaOon accrual and accumulaOon limits. 
It is also interesOng to note that while on the one hand you raise concerns about differenOal treatment in your
grievance, on the other hand you are specifically requesOng differenOal treatment – that you be allowed a one-
Ome cash-out so that you will be in a posiOon to accrue addiOonal vacaOon Ome.  However, if the Authority
provided such a cash-out to you, then other employees could have concern about the Authority acOng contrary
to the express terms of the MOU and applicable rules and policies.  Also, it would not be fair to treat you in a
different manner than the other members of your bargaining unit.
 
The Union disagrees with this whole statement because the Ms. Boskovich filed a grievance in a Omely fashion
and within the grievance parameters. The nature of this case is that the Authority due to various reasons has
limitaOons in fulfilling the commitments it has negoOated with the Union for employees including Ms.
Boskovich, who due a suspension of vacaOon or blocked out dates due to the transiOon of Culver City and due
to the nature of the current vacaOon bidding system could not secure but one week maximum vacaOon and
then would be set to stop accruing which we classify as losing Ome during this ongoing period of Ome. Mr. Krok
expresses the goal of your request without considering or lisOng the various goals of the grievance and
requests. Furthermore, Mr. Krok goes on to accuse Ms. Boskovich of requesOng special treatment which
couldn’t be more faraway from the truth. Ms. Boskovich was looking for opOons just like Ms. Farley has looking
for opOons as she was faced with the possibility of losing Ome which as Ms. Boskovich witnessed had been
worked out already with the AdministraOon. It was the witnessing of this event that actually led Ms. Boskovich
to pursue filing a grievance due to the nature of the concession that the AdministraOon would be providing Ms.
Farley. Therefore, Mr. Krok sOpulaOng that other employees could have concern about the Authority acOng
contrary to the express terms of the MOU and applicable rules and policies does not hold ground provided that
Ms. Boskovich is clear on what she heard Ms. Farley communicate on the operaOons floor.
 
Mr. Krok goes on to classify Ms. Boskovich’s grievance as not grievable. If the maaer was not a grievance then
why would Ms. Coston hear her grievance and subsequently the ExecuOve Director?
 
On or about May 22, 2018 the Union submiaed the following to Erick Lee, ExecuOve Director:
 
The purpose of this correspondence is to request this grievance to be heard at Step 3 of ArOcle 16 Grievance
procedure of the MOU.
 
The employee is not saOsfied with the decision rendered at the Step 2 level and therefore we are appealing at
your level.
 
Please confirm receipt of this email and that we have filed a Omely appeal.
 
Let’s coordinate calendars to for you to hear the grievance.
 
On or about May 30, 2018 Ms. Boskovich, Mr. Lee and Carlos Rubio, Senior Business RepresentaOve met at the
Authority’s premises.
 
As previously expressed the employee has not been saOsfied with the response from Ms. Coston at Step 1 and
the response from the Mr. Krok at Step 2 of the grievance process. We firmly believe that the responses at Step
1 and 2 do not address the specific concerns that Ms. Boskovich has laid out. We firmly believe that Ms.
Boskovich does have a grievance and that the intent of the memorandum of understanding was never to limit
or prevent employees from exercising their right to go on vacaOon and or conOnue to accrue vacaOon if for
some reason the needs of the authority prevented an employee from exercising their right to uOlize their
earned vacaOon. Ms. Boskovich is not requesOng for special treatment or for a favor but she did express that if
Ms. Farley was receiving consideraOon for special treatment then that she should be afforded the same
opportunity just like other employees as well. Ms. Boskovich is the employee speaking up but may not be the
only one that has concerns associated with this issue. Employee safety, work life balance, producOvity, and
morale ulOmately may have an impact in the delivery of the crucial services that employees provide. The
working condiOons where employees are mandated/forced to work overOme add to the health and safety

Agenda Packet  Page 155 of 171



Page 4 of 4

concerns of employees. Employees are exhausted from all of the hours they are mandated to work and from
the constant direcOves that require them to be ready for duty. It truly boils down to employees crying loudly
for help for their own sanity of a balance that for years has been dealt with a message that, “this is the
industry,” and “this is what employees signed up for,” we disagree, because we feel employees joined the
service to serve and protect just like safety employees did, yet they feel they only serve and do so without a
balance. Of all of the employees we ask how many are fully trained? How many vacancies need to be filled?
How to we address trainees, leaves of absences, medical injuries? How to plan for a balance or an unfortunate
rainy day? How do we balance the needs of the business operaOons with the needs and wants of the service
providers in this case the employees? The employees are the lifeline to the safety of the communiOes they
serve! They answer the call when the ciOzenry most needs it; they need to be in the best fitness to deliver and
when they can’t take enough Ome off it eats at their physical and mental health which can make them
suscepOble to errors and or injuries. At this point and based on the responses Ms. Boskovich feels powerless in
this situaOon she finds unfair and unreasonable. We urge you to help us find a soluOon for everyone
immediately that is fair and reasonable across the board. Lastly, we request that you review the pay sheets for
Supervisors and Administrators and determine if any concessions have been allowed during recent Omes.
 
If you have any quesOon please feel free to contact me. Thank you,
 
 
Carlos I. Rubio
California Teamsters Local 911
Public, Professional & Medical Employees Union
9900 Flower Street
Bellflower, CA 90706
T: (562) 595-4518 Ext: 111
F: (562) 427-7298
E: crubio@teamsters911.com
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Packet  Page 156 of 171



ATTACHMENT #7 

Agenda Item H1 

Agenda Packet  Page 157 of 171



Page 1 of 9 
 

SOUTH BAY REGIONAL PUBLIC COMMUNICATIONS AUTHORITY 
 

M E M O R A N D U M 
 

DATE:  July 19 , 2018 
 

TO:   Sirena Boskovich, Communications Operator 
 
FROM:  Erick Lee, Executive Director 
 
SUBJECT:  Step 3 Grievance Response   
 
ATTACHMENTS: 1.  Grievance 
   2.  Step 1 Decision 
   3.  Request from Carlos Rubio for Step 2 Review 
   4.  Step 2 Decision 

5.  Request from Carlos Rubio for Step 3 Review 
   6.  Additional Information Provided on June 28, 2018 
   7.  Copy of Section 16 of the MOU with the Teamsters 
 
INTRODUCTION 
I have reviewed the grievance you filed on or about April 24, 2018 and the Step 1 
and Step 2 grievance decisions issued to you on April 26, 2018 and May 17, 2018, 
respectively.  On May 18, 2018, your representative, Carlos Rubio from California 
Teamsters Local 911 (“Teamsters”), requested that this grievance be escalated to 
Step 3.  On May 30, 2018, I met with you and Mr. Rubio to discuss the grievance.  
At the conclusion of that meeting, Mr. Rubio requested that I not render a decision 
on the grievance within the next 10 days.  Instead, Mr. Rubio requested that I wait 
until he was able to provide me with additional information.  That additional 
information was provided to me on June 28, 2018.  Due to the additional time 
needed for me to analyze and research the additional information provided, Mr. 
Rubio agreed to extend the deadline for my decision until July 19, 2018. 
 
In response to your request for Executive Director Review of your grievance, this 
memorandum shall serve as my Step 3 decision as the Executive Director, 
pursuant to Section 16.6(c) of the Memorandum of Understanding (“MOU”) 
between the South Bay Regional Public Communications Authority (“Authority”) 
and the Teamsters. 
 
 
SUMMARY OF GRIEVANCE 
My understanding of your grievance and proposed remedies are as follows: 
 

1. Your inability to utilize the vacation leave benefits provided to you under the 
MOU. 
 

Agenda Packet  Page 158 of 171



Page 2 of 9 
 

During the shift, vacation, and holiday selection for the current period 
of March 10, 2018 to September 7, 2018, you were unable to select 
more than one week of vacation because employees assigned to 
similar days/hours as you, and with more seniority than you, selected 
vacation days that otherwise could have been available to you.  As 
a consequence and during this period, you will be required to convert 
a limited number of hours of unused vacation leave to cash at 85% 
of your regular rate of pay (benefit provided to Group A employees 
per Section 12.12 of the MOU) in order to maximize your ability to 
continue to accrue vacation leave.  Furthermore, your accumulated 
vacation leave will reach 336 hours, which is the maximum amount 
allowable under the MOU, prior to the end of this period and before 
you have the opportunity to select additional vacation days, thus 
creating a situation where you will no longer accrue vacation leave.  
You have asserted that since you are unable to accrue additional 
vacation leave, this amounts to a cancellation of your vacation. 
 
As proposed remedies, you have suggested that you not be subject 
to the 336 hour limit on vacation leave accruals specified in Section 
9.11 of the MOU.  Additionally, you have suggested that any amount 
of vacation leave that you elect to convert to cash not be subject to 
the 85% regular rate of pay per Section 12.12 of the MOU.  Rather, 
you request that this amount should be paid at 100% of your regular 
rate of pay. 

 
 

2. Your dissatisfaction with the vacation leave selection process. 
 

You assert that current staffing levels are not sufficient to provide all 
employees with the ability to utilize all of their accumulated vacation 
leave.    Additionally, you contend that the current and longstanding 
vacation leave selection practice—which allows for employees to 
select an unlimited amount of vacation leave (subject to employees 
having accrued enough vacation leave to cover their selections), 
favors those employees with the most seniority, and leaves junior 
employees with less ability to utilize their vacation leave—
exacerbates this problem. 
 
As a proposed remedy, you have suggested that the vacation leave 
selection practice be revised to be more equitable for all employees 
while still maintaining a seniority component. 

 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Packet  Page 159 of 171



Page 3 of 9 
 

3. Your allegation of differential treatment. 
 

You assert that Communications Supervisor Sandy Farley was 
provided the opportunity to change the type of leave she was 
planning to take from a leave type other than vacation to vacation 
leave in order for her to avoid reaching the maximum number of 
accumulated vacation leave hours allowable under the Authority’s 
Memorandum of Understanding with the Communications Workers 
of America.  You contend that you were not afforded this same 
opportunity. 
 
As a proposed remedy, you have suggested for the Authority to 
provide equal treatment for all employees regardless of their 
respective bargaining unit.  Additionally, you contend that if 
exceptions are provided to one employee, then all employees should 
have the opportunity to request similar exceptions on a case-by-case 
basis. 
 

 
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR’S ANALYSIS  
My analysis of your grievance is as follows: 
 

1. Timeliness of Filing the Grievance. 
 
When you selected your shift and vacation leave for this period, the issues 
related to your limited ability to utilize the vacation leave benefits provided 
to you under the MOU became known to you.  These issues correlate to the 
shift you selected:  Dayshift on Tuesday, Wednesday, and Thursday with a 
call-in day on Friday. 
 
Around the time of your shift and vacation leave selections, 
Communications Supervisor Farley discussed this vacation leave utilization 
issue with you.  She advised you of your opportunity to utilize more vacation 
leave if you selected a different shift.  In fact, numerous Communications 
Operators with less seniority than you have been able to utilize multiple 
weeks of vacation leave during this period because they chose to work 
Graveyard shift schedules.  This was true over the prior two periods as well. 
 
Article 16 of the MOU specifies: 
 

An employee who wishes to grieve an incident should first discuss 
the matter with his/her immediate supervisor within five (5) calendar 
days of the incident.  If not satisfied with the decision reached by this 
discussion, the employee shall then have the right to file a formal 
grievance in writing, within ten (10) calendar days after receiving the 
informal decision of the immediate supervisor. 

Agenda Packet  Page 160 of 171



Page 4 of 9 
 

 
The shift, vacation, and holiday selections for the period of March 10, 2018 
to September 7, 2018 commenced on January 16, 2018.  You selected your 
shift on or around January 27, 2018, and the entire process concluded on 
February 1, 2018.  Therefore, your deadline to informally discuss this matter 
with your immediate supervisor was February 6, 2018, and your deadline to 
file a formal grievance in writing regarding this issue was on or before 
February 16, 2018.   
 
The timelines specified in the MOU for filing grievances afford employees a 
method for further consideration of complaints which have not been 
resolved through discussions and for formally informing the Authority of 
issues they are concerned about when they occur.  As with many aspects 
of employment, time is of the essence.  The grievance procedure sets into 
motion a process that requires the Authority to address such issues in a 
timely manner, in writing, with five (5) and ten (10) day turn-around times 
for responses due to the employees.  By becoming aware of these issues 
as soon as possible, the Authority is able to evaluate them, determine if 
solutions exist that can prevent or mitigate them, and/or resolve them 
promptly with the least amount of impact to employees.   
 
You filed your grievance on or about April 24, 2018, which is over two 
months past the deadline specified in the MOU.  Had you filed this grievance 
within the timelines specified by the MOU, the Authority could have 
considered these issues prior to the commencement of the shift period and 
prior to the point where you had reached the accrual limit for vacation leave.  
If your grievance was determined to have merit, the Authority could have 
considered modifications to shift schedules and/or the authorization of 
additional vacation leave days prior to the start date of the shift period to 
address these issues without unduly disrupting the schedules of 
approximately 40 Communications Operators over the following six (6) 
months. 
 
 

2. Consideration of Argument re: Cancellation of Vacation 
 
In your grievance, you asserted that since you are unable to accrue 
additional vacation leave, this amounts to a cancellation of your vacation.   
 
Cancellation of vacation is a specific action taken by the Authority to disrupt 
an employee’s planned vacation leave because of specific organizational 
needs.  In such rare cases, Section 9.11 of the MOU provides employees 
with the following relief: 
 

If requirements of the service necessitate cancellation of scheduled 
vacation leave and it cannot be rescheduled and used before the end 

Agenda Packet  Page 161 of 171



Page 5 of 9 
 

of the calendar year, a maximum of eighty (80) hours in addition to 
the accrual maximum may be carried over for use not later than 
February 1 of the following calendar year. 

 
In your case, you were approved for one (1) week of vacation leave during 
the shift period (June 12, 2018 through June 15, 2018).  This vacation leave 
was not canceled by the Authority.   
 
 

3. Amount of Years to Accumulate 336 Hours of Vacation Leave 
 
The MOU specifies that employees with 10 or more years of service will 
accrue 192 hours of vacation leave per year.  Employees with this amount 
of tenure can accumulate a maximum of 336 hours.  Section 9.11 of the 
MOU states: 
 

All accumulation maximums shown cannot be exceeded and 
accumulation stops until accrual is below maximum. 

 
It takes almost two years (21 months) for an employee with over 10 years 
of service who does not utilize any vacation leave to accumulate 336 hours 
of vacation leave.  If an employee with this amount of tenure took one (1) 
week of vacation every shift period, it would take three years to reach this 
cap.  If this employee took one (1) week of vacation every shift period and 
took the opportunity to convert up to 72 hours of vacation leave each year 
for cash, it would take nearly 8.5 years to reach this cap. 
 
Although you chose a shift that did not allow you to utilize more than one 
(1) week of vacation leave during this shift period, the circumstances which 
caused you to get to the point where you will stop accruing vacation leave 
did not happen overnight.  Rather, they happened over a period of years. 
 
While you did convert 72 hours of vacation leave to cash in November of 
2017, the Authority’s records show that you did not exercise this option that 
was available to you in prior years.  Had you exercised this option when it 
was available in 2015 and/or 2016, your vacation leave balance would not 
be at the maximum limit as allowed under the MOU. 
 
 

4. Consideration of Argument re: Differential Treatment 
 
In your grievance, you asserted that Communications Supervisor Sandy 
Farley was provided the opportunity to change the type of leave she was 
planning to take from a leave type other than vacation to vacation leave in 
order for her to avoid reaching the maximum number of accumulated 

Agenda Packet  Page 162 of 171



Page 6 of 9 
 

vacation leave hours allowable for her bargaining unit.  However, you 
contend that you were not afforded this same opportunity. 
 
As a proposed remedy, you have suggested for the Authority to provide 
equal treatment for all employees regardless of their respective bargaining 
unit.  Additionally, you contend that if exceptions are provided to one 
employee, then all employees should have the opportunity to request similar 
exceptions on a case-by-case basis. 
 
Communications Supervisor Farley’s terms and conditions of employment 
governed by the Authority’s Memorandum of Understanding with the 
Communications Workers of America.  Additionally, her current assignment 
is administrative in nature and subject to a traditional five day a week, eight 
hour per day schedule.  She is not subject to the same practices and 
procedures for vacation leave as other members of her bargaining unit who 
work 12 hours shift as supervisors in the Communications Center.   
 
The practices and procedures relating to the use of leave time for 
employees who work in the Communications Center are specific and 
necessary to manage this aspect of the Authority’s operations.  If 
Communications Supervisor Farley was provided the opportunity to change 
her leave time from a leave type other than vacation to vacation leave, this 
would not be problematic for scheduling issues because the nature of the 
work she performs for the Authority and the criteria for approving leave 
requests for administrative employees differs from that of employees 
assigned to work in the Communications Center.   
 
In fact, the six (6) Teamsters members who work in the Technical Services 
Department have enjoyed this type of flexibility for years as it relates to 
leave approvals.  Due to the nature of their work, they are not required to 
staff a specific position each and every day and are granted leave time upon 
request (assuming they possess appropriate leave balances and can be 
spared for the days off they are requesting). 
 
 

5. Moratorium on Leave Time re: Transition of Culver City 
 
During our meeting on May 30, 2018 and in the supplementary 
correspondence received on June 28, 2018, you and Mr. Rubio asserted 
that a factor which contributed to your accumulated vacation leave reaching 
the 336 hour limit was the moratorium on leave time that was imposed in 
2017 during the transition of Culver City to the Authority. 
 
I have researched this issue and found that the Authority did in fact prohibit 
time off from March 11, 2017 to May 11, 2017 due to the transition of Culver 
City.  This prohibition applied to all Communications Operators, and during 

Agenda Packet  Page 163 of 171



Page 7 of 9 
 

this two month period no Communications Operators were granted vacation 
leave.  This action was necessary to ensure the Authority could provide 
critical public safety services during this transition.  While it undoubtedly 
contributed to your ability (or inability) to utilize vacation leave in 2017, this 
moratorium was applied across the board and impacted all affected 
employees equally. 
 
 

6. Consideration of Argument re: Other Employees with Similar Issue 
 
In the supplementary correspondence provided by Mr. Rubio on June 28, 
2018, he suggested that you may not be the only employee who has 
concerns about the issue of not being able to utilize enough accrued 
vacation leave or convert enough of this leave time to cash and is therefore 
at or nearing the point where vacation accruals will stop because the 
maximum limit of 336 hours will have been reached. 
 
I have researched this issue and found that, as of May 4, 2018, you are the 
only Communications Operator who was at or near the vacation leave cap 
of 336 hours.  The Communications Operator with the highest balance after 
you had 244 hours. 
 
 

DETERMINATION 
Having reviewed and analyzed your grievance, and having conducted additional 
research related to the supplemental information you and Mr. Rubio have provided, 
I am denying your grievance on the following grounds: 
 

1. Per Article 16 of the MOU, the deadline for you to file a formal grievance in 
writing was on or before February 16, 2018.  You filed this grievance on or 
about April 24, 2018, which is over two months past the deadline specified 
in the Teamster’s agreement with the Authority. 
 

2. In regards to the 336 hour limit on vacation leave accruals as specified in 
Section 9.11 of the MOU:  This limit was mutually agreed upon by the 
Teamsters and the Authority.  As indicated on page 1 of the MOU, this 
agreement is binding on the Authority, and the agreement does not provide 
the Executive Director with any authority or right to change its terms and 
conditions.   Additionally, the MOU also has a conversion of cash option 
that safeguards an employee’s ability to receive a benefit for his/her 
vacation leave in the event that he/she is unable to receive approval for 
vacation leave. 

 
3. In regards to the conversion rate for converting vacation leave to cash:  This 

conversion rate is 85% as specified in Section 12.12 of the MOU and was 
mutually agreed upon by the Teamsters and the Authority.  As indicated on 

Agenda Packet  Page 164 of 171



Page 8 of 9 
 

page 1 of the MOU, this agreement is binding on the Authority, and the 
agreement does not provide the Executive Director with any authority or 
right to change its terms and conditions. 

 
4. In regards to the use of vacation leave and differential treatment to 

employees:  The Authority may need to have vacation leave practices for 
Communications Operators that differ from those which relate to other 
classifications, assignments, and bargaining units.  Due to the mandatory 
staffing needs of the Communications Center, it would be impractical for the 
Authority to apply the same vacation leave practices that relate to 
administrative positions or the Technical Services Department to 
Communications Operators. 

 
 
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR’S INSIGHT 
While I have denied your grievance for the reasons outlined above, I am very 
sympathetic to the issues you have raised, especially as it relates to the limited 
ability of employees to utilize their vacation leave in a manner that meets their 
needs and ensures their optimum work-life balance.   
 
You have suggested that the vacation leave selection practice for Communications 
Operators could be revised to provide more equity to all employees while still 
maintaining a seniority component, and Mr. Rubio has requested that the Authority 
find a solution that is fair and reasonable for everyone immediately.  I have 
discussed this idea with my staff, and we feel that changes to this practice could 
be beneficial to the Authority’s operations.  However, changes to the vacation 
leave selection practice relate to wages, hours, and other "terms and conditions of 
employment" and are therefore mandatory subjects of collective bargaining.  As 
such, the Authority is willing to discuss your idea with the Teamsters if this is a 
change the union would like to consider.  My encouragement to you is for you to 
reach out to your authorized employee representatives if you’d like to pursue this 
idea and start this dialogue.  I think your idea has merit and am certainly open to 
this discussion. 
 
Additionally, many of the issues you have raised in your grievance relate to 
Communications Operator staffing levels.  Upon my arrival at the Authority in early 
April 2018, I found that nearly 20% of our line level positions were vacant.  
Therefore, recruitment immediately became my top priority.  Since then, we have 
filled half of these vacant positions and, as of today, only have five (5) vacancies 
remaining.  Moreover, these remaining vacancies are anticipated to be filled by the 
end of the year.  As the Authority fills these remaining positions and more new 
employees complete their training, you and your co-workers should find that you 
have more accessibility to leave time, less mandatory overtime obligations, and 
more control over your work-life balance needs. 
 

Agenda Packet  Page 165 of 171



Page 9 of 9 
 

Thank you for having the courage and willingness to bring these important issues 
cited in your grievance to my attention.  While I have not been able to provide you 
with the relief you have requested, I do remain a strong advocate for providing our 
Communications Operators with the conditions and resources necessary for them 
to succeed in their role as the backbone of our agency.  I appreciate your 
partnership and welcome any further insight or ideas you have that will enhance 
the Authority’s ability to be an employer of choice in the public safety 
communications industry. 
 
  
CC: Carlos Rubio, California Teamsters Local 911  

Agenda Packet  Page 166 of 171



ATTACHMENT #8 

Agenda Item H1 

Agenda Packet  Page 167 of 171



Agenda Packet  Page 168 of 171



ATTACHMENT #9 

Agenda Item H1 

Agenda Packet  Page 169 of 171



Agenda Packet  Page 170 of 171



Agenda Packet  Page 171 of 171




